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PART |

Except for historical information, this Annual Repoontains forward-looking statements within theaming of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and

Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange AcB8#1 Such forward-looking statements include, ammthgrs, those statements including
the words "expects”, "anticipates”, "intends", feeks", "may", "will", "should", "continue" and sitar language or the negative of such te
or other comparable terminology. Although we bedigvat the expectations reflected in the forwaaking statements are reasonable,
HealthStream's actual results may differ signifisaftom those projected in the forward-lookingtstaents. Factors that might cause or
contribute to such differences include, but arelintited to, those discussed in the section "Rigktbrs" and elsewhere in this document. In
addition, factors that we are not currently awdreanld harm our future operating results. You stlaarefully review the risks described in
other documents HealthStream files from time tcetimith the Securities and Exchange Commissionydint the Quarterly Reports on Fo
10-Q that HealthStream will file in 2001. You a@utioned not to place undue reliance on forwardkilmp statements, which speak only as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. He&itham undertakes no obligation to publicly releasgrevisions to the forward-looking
statements or reflect events or circumstances thitedate of this document.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW AND HISTORY

HealthStream, Inc. ("HealthStream" or the "Compapybvides Web-based solutions and services to thedtaining and education needs of
the healthcare industry. HealthStream providesi@es\to customers throughout the United Statesisiog primarily on healthcare
organizations and pharmaceutical and medical dedogpanies. Within healthcare organizations, oausds on expanding HealthStream's
installed and Internet-based application servicwider, or ASP e-learning solutions to hospitald Emg-term care and outpatient facilities.
Services to healthcare organizations are delivémeaigh our proprietary installed and ASP-basedpcts. For pharmaceutical and medical
device companies, our focus is on providing sesvineluding Web cast events, content and coursed@arelopment, event development and
registration, and Web-based sponsorship of coumrsevdarvices to pharmaceutical and medical devoogpanies are facilitated through our
library of licensed content as well as our disttit of Web portal partners.

The Company was incorporated in 1990 and initiat@the operations in March 1999. The Company dexaddrom an initial focus of
providing multimedia tools for information disseration to the full-service delivery of training aaducation for the healthcare industry. We
have established relationships with major healthaastitutions to provide training solutions to e needs of the healthcare organization,
its employees and its vendors.

Industry Background

Industry sources estimate that the healthcare indtepresents a $1.3 trillion market, or approxiehal4% of the gross domestic product.
We believe over 10.0 million professionals are emetl in this segment of the domestic economy, dinlyover 5.0 million allied healthcare
professionals (which include among others approteiya’ 00,000 emergency medicine and first respopdesonnel and approximately
250,000 radiology technicians),2.6 million registénurses, 2.4 million non-clinical employees af@,600 physicians. Approximately 4.0
million of these professionals work in the hospé@al/ironment.

The healthcare education industry is a dynamicstrgiicharacterized by ongoing development of nesvapeutic treatments and procedures
and innovations in medical technology that togetineate a demand for information exchange. Govenhmegulations and accrediting bod
require employers to provide healthcare professsosmad other healthcare workers with training orineneasing number and variety of top
In addition, to keep abreast of the latest develmand to meet licensing and certification regyunts, healthcare professionals must
obtain continuing education. This training includegety training mandated by both the OccupatiGadéty and Health Administration, or
OSHA, and the Joint Commission on Accreditatiotdeflthcare Organizations, or JCAHO, for all ingtdnal-based healthcare workers.
Continuing education requirements include contigwiéducation for nurses, emergency medicine andrésponder personnel, radiology
personnel, and continuing medical education, or CfdEdoctors. Simultaneously, the healthcare itjusontinues to operate under intense
pressure to reduce costs as a result of redudtiagsvernment reimbursement and increased partioipaf patients in managed care
programs. In addition, healthcare organizationselsas pharmaceutical and medical device compaiesinder increased pressure to
measure and report on the outcomes or resultsealdhars spent on training. Our products and ses/imeet these needs, reduce healthcare
organizations' costs of training and provide unigpportunities for additional products or servieethin the healthcare industry.

HEALTHSTREAM'S SOLUTIONS
Healthcare Organization Solutions

HealthStream's solutions are designed to meetrtheing training and education needs of the healthceammunity. We bring high quality
content together with administrative and managerteais. This combination allows healthcare admiatst's to configure training to meet
precise needs of different groups of employees,iiyjt@ining materials and monitor the resultsrafining. Healthcare organizations are
confronted with significant mandated and recurtiagning requirements for continuing certificatiohprofessionals and the requirements of
individual facilities.



Historically, we have provided our services throsgles of installed learning management systenredunced during the second quarter of
2000, our ASP-based Healthcare Learning Centeriggeorganizations with the ability to access oaining and continuing education
services over the



Internet. Our training software is hosted in a cardata center that allows end users Web acceas toontinuing education and training
services, eliminating the need for onsite instalta of software. The Healthcare Learning Centeo provides a set of administrative and
management tools that enable administrators taguef and modify training materials, track performoa and predict training expenses.
Pricing is subscription based, with fees varyingdazhon the number of users, content provided amat féictors. We also offer training
services to facilitate integration of this techrpigroduct into the organization's operating enwinents. Fees for training are based on the
time and efforts of the personnel involved. Furtkree monitor utilization by customer facility withe intent of achieving full deployment
within our customer base.

Our installed systems are provided on an init@@rise basis, with pricing based on the number pl@mes, sites involved, and content
provided. Installed software contracts typicallysist of an upfront license fee, additional contalés and ongoing maintenance and sup
For both our ASP-based, Healthcare Learning Centsiomers and installed system users, technicglostiieams provide customer service
on-site and via telephone or electronic mail.

In addition to our ASP-based Healthcare Learningt&eand installed learning management systems|seeoffer healthcare organizations
with full-service capabilities to convert existingurse materials to a Web-enabled format or devalispom courseware for the organization.
Pricing for these services is generally basedme tind efforts involved. Our development group eesjble for such services includes
instructional designers, scriptwriters, multimed&signers, graphic artists, audio and video engin@eogrammers and project managers.
ability to market courseware developed for onetheale organization to our other customers providese healthcare organizations with the
opportunity to offset their development costs tigloeourseware sales royalties.

In the future our focus will be on growing our diig customer base of over 200 facilities usingAl$P-based Healthcare Learning Center
and converting our over 800 installed product cugtis to our ASP-based product. We will also comtitiutarget new customers, both
through our sales force, and by capitalizing onexisting preferred vendor arrangements with séverspital group purchasing
organizations, or GPOSs, including Premier, Inc.|Witary Hospital Association (VHA) and Amerinet. Welieve our existing sales force,
along with these arrangements, offers us the oppitytto grow our ASP customer base. Further, apedence demonstrates that our ASP-
based product fits the healthcare industry wellesiit facilitates predictability of training costeduces capital outlays, and reduces the
demands for in-house technology resources duestinigoby HealthStream.

Services to pharmaceutical and medical device caimpa

HealthStream has historically provided serviceseteen of the top ten pharmaceutical companies ighdl @& the top ten medical device
companies. We have an opportunity to expand owamaes by further developing these relationshipsirigu2000, we provided services to
these customers in the form of content and counsedeavelopment, event development and registragovices, Web cast events and course
sponsorship.

We provide pharmaceutical and medical device comegamith content and courseware development andersion services. Many
pharmaceutical and medical device manufacturenggedheir employees or customers with interactraeming. We have full-service
capabilities to convert existing course materiala ¥Web-enabled format or develop custom coursefea@ur customers through a dedicated
development group. In some cases, these servicesléndevelopment and sales of materials distrbateCD-ROMs. Pricing for these
services is based on time and efforts of the peddnvolved.

HealthStream offers event development and registraervices. These services include developmecbwfse agendas, coordination of
subject matter experts, preparation of course fiaggeand registration of attendees. Developmeanices are based on the size of the event,
number of attendees and other factors. Pricingdgistration services is based on the size of tleateor a percentage of the registration ve

Our Web cast events offer both live and archived\&sts of medical procedures, thought-leader gisons, and other events in a cost
effective manner to facilitate provision of contimg education. These Web cast events typically isbo§ the presentation of an edited
streaming video of a lecture by a leading physidamatie field and may include a demonstration aa procedure or technique followed b
live discussion. In addition, our Web cast evendy e followed by other interactive coursewaretbeocontinuing education opportunities.
The Web cast event may be supported by an eduehgioant by a pharmaceutical or medical device ammypFees or the amount of the gi
for Web cast events vary based on the scope abet, the target audience, publicity services idex and other peripheral services related
to the event.

Course sponsorship arrangements can be basedingivddual course provided tuition-free to all paippants or can be based on providing a
broad audience access to a full array of coursea@@ss our distribution partner network for a #igeperiod of time. Pricing for sponsorst
arrangements is typically based on the size ofaiget audience, the content involved and the guraif the sponsorship.

Sales of products and services to pharmaceutichiredical device companies can be subject to sabfamtors as a result of drug and
product introductions and budget cycles for suahganies.

ACQUISITIONS

HealthStream has made seven acquisitions overasteypo years and has focused on acquisitionsatithproducts or services, increase our
customer base, or provide enabling technologigsatteacomplementary to our existing business. Wiel®we can recognize economies



scale by making acquisitions in markets in whichalready have a presence. In addition, we lookp@aed our product and service offerings
by leveraging products that can operate on outiegisechnology platform. Acquisitions completedidg the last two years, all of which
were accounted for using the purchase method @fuating, are as follows: SilverPlatter Educatiarg. lin July 1999 ("SilverPlatter");
KnowledgeReview, LLC ("KnowledgeReview") in Janu&g00; Quick Study, Inc. ("Quick Study") in Janu@2g00; Multimedia Marketing,
Inc. d/b/a m3 the Healthcare Learning Company ()n3January 2000; Emergency Medicine Internetwbnk, d/b/a EMInet ("EMInet") in

January 2000; Education Design, Inc. ("Educatiosi@®") in July 2000; and SynQuest Technologies, (t8ynQuest") in September 2000.
For additional



information regarding recent acquisitions, pleasedote 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statememtisitem 7, "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations."

CUSTOMERS

We provide our training and education solutionsustomers across a broad range of entities witt@rhealthcare industry including hospital
organizations (including government entities), phaceutical and medical device companies. The fatigus a partial list of customers that
have purchased or contracted for products andcgsrfifom HealthStream:

Healthcare Organizations Pharmaceutical Companies
HCA-the Healthcare Company Pfizer
Cox Health Systems Merck
North Atlantic Regional Medical Command AstraZeneca
Medical Device Companie s

GE Medical Systems
Johnson & Johnson
Medtronic

Boston Scientific

SALES, MARKETING, AND CUSTOMER SUPPORT

HealthStream markets its learning solutions prilpdhirough its direct sales force. As of DecemhbkrZ)00, HealthStream's sales force
consisted of approximately forty employees basets abrporate headquarters in Nashville, Tenneasdeat other locations in Colorado,
Massachusetts, North Carolina and Texas as wedmete sales offices. These employees includetdiratinside sales professionals as well
as program managers. The program managers arensdsiedor live event services and work to devdlop existing relationships with
pharmaceutical and medical device companies. Qactd$ales organization is divided into two groupee is focused on healthcare
organizations and the other on sales to pharmaedatnd medical device companies. The inside $ales supports the direct sales force by
helping field initial inquiries, qualify sales lesdorepare proposals, and prepare sales conffaetsCompany anticipates minor growth in the
sales force during 2001.

HealthStream conducts a variety of marketing pnmgréo promote HealthStream's products and seniivgsiding direct mail, advertising,
trade shows, public relations and distributionitefrature. We also focus on leveraging our markgedfiorts through co-branding
arrangements with our partners.

We believe our ability to establish and maintainggerm customer relationships, adoption of oudpmts and services, and recurring sales is
dependent on the strength of our customer servideoperations team. Our customer service team sisrsi a total of approximately thirty
employees located in our offices in Nashville, Ma@arolina and Texas. We provide customer suppahtl users through a toll-free
telephone line. Our representatives are traineshtterstand our philosophy and corporate culturecamgpecific sales, marketing and sup
issues. We believe our customer service departmidirdecrease in size due to the consolidatiorhefdustomer service functions as well as
the consolidation of operating platforms.

In addition, we have five additional personnel mrggible for implementation of ASP customers anddtindividuals responsible for
maintaining relationships with distribution partseWe expect that our ASP implementation departmwdhincrease in size in 2001 as we
continue to grow our ASP customer base.

TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT

Our technology infrastructure is based on an opehitgcture designed to be secure, reliable andredgble. Our software is a combinatiol
proprietary applications, third party databaseveafe and operating systems that support acquisimahconversion of content, management
of that content, publication of our Web sites, dtamias of courseware, registration and trackingsafrsi and reporting of information for both
internal and external use. We have designed tfrizsmucture to allow each component to be indepetig scaled, usually by purchasing
additional readily available hardware and softwarmponents.

Our client-server training and administrative safterhas become the application and foundationdoonline training and continuing
education solution. This learning system is a $talaomputer managed instruction system that dwsliveeractive courses. Users and
administrators may obtain detailed reports on imfmtion ranging from user training history to conteffiectiveness. By automating
knowledge delivery and tracking training for eveer, the system both improves knowledge distiiloudind reduces training overhead.

Our network infrastructure, Web site and servetweieng our services are hosted by a third partvjler. Our provider maintains suitable
environmental conditions and multiple back up posaurrces and network connections. Our providerigesvits hosting and connectivity
services on high-quality Hewlett-Packard servers @isco routers. Our provider's hosting centepisnected to the Internet through high-
speed fiber optic circuits. Monitoring of all sersgnetworks and systems is performed on a contisbasis. Through our provider,



employ numerous levels of firewall systems to prbteur databases, customer information and cotiteaty. Backups of all databases, data
and content files are performed on



a daily basis. Data back-up tapes are archivedeanate location on a weekly basis. During 2000N@$ provided hosting and connectivity
services. During 2001, we began utilizing Exodus@asprovider of hosting and connectivity servidésodus' operations are substantially
similar to PSINet.

COMPETITION

The healthcare education industry is highly fragteénvaries significantly in delivery methods (iwritten materials, live events, video and
CD-ROM products and online products), has histdlsicchown an inability to measure outcomes or nss@nd is composed of a wide variety
of entities competing for customers. The sheermelwf healthcare information available to satisiptuing education needs, rapid
advances in medical developments, and the timetr@onts that healthcare professionals face mad#ficult to quickly and efficiently access
the continuing education content most relevanttindividual's practice or profession. Historicalhealthcare professionals have received
continuing education and training through offlingbpications, such as medical journals and CD-ROasl, by attending conferences and
seminars. In addition, other healthcare workersgratmaceutical and medical device manufacturalss ind internal regulatory personnel
usually fulfill their education and training nedtisough instructor-led programs from external vasdw internal training departments. While
these approaches satisfy the ongoing requiremibvetg are limited in that they are typically cosdlyd inconvenient. In addition, such live
courses are often limited in the breadth of offgsiand do not provide a method for tracking thelte®f training. The related results of these
traditional methods, both from a business and c@npé standpoint, are difficult to track and measur

HealthStream believes there are no competitorsciragntly offer comprehensive e-learning solutititet are directly comparable to our
services for the healthcare industry. HealthStrbalieves that its solutions, which include produatd services that facilitate training for
healthcare professionals, a wide assortment okeobrd mechanism for measuring results, and tHigyatiol provide all services on a single
platform over the Internet, provide us with a cotitpe advantage. HealthStream believes that theciral competitive factors affecting the
marketing of e-learning services to the healthazdestry include:

- features of the e-learning product, includingaripg, management functionality, scalability, @hd ability to track utilization and results;

- scope and variety of e-learning content availatd&iding mandated content for OSHA and JCAHO neguents as well as the ability of
entities to add their own Web-enabled content;

- scope and quality of professional services offenecluding training and the expertise and techifknowledge of the providers' employees;
- pricing;

- customer service and support;

- effectiveness of sales and marketing efforts; and

- company reputation.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND THE HEALT HCARE INDUSTRY

The Internet

The laws and regulations that govern our busineaage rapidly. The United States government angaernments of some states and
foreign countries have attempted to regulate ds/on the Internet. The following are some oféhielving areas of law that are relevant to
our business:

- Privacy Law. Current and proposed federal, stat&foreign privacy regulations and other lawsrigtsitg the collection, use, confidentiality
and disclosure of personal information could limir ability to collection information, use the infioation in our databases, or derived from
other sources, to generate revenues. It may by tosimplement security or other measures desigoadmply with any new legislation.

- Encryption Laws. Many copyright owner associagitiave lobbied the federal government for lawsireggcopyrighted materials
transmitted over the Internet to be digitally emted in order to track rights and prevent unaugteatiuse of copyrighted materials. If these
laws are adopted, we may incur substantial costenaply with these requirements or change the waylavbusiness.

- Content Regulation. Both foreign and domesticagaments have adopted and proposed laws govetmngpontent of material transmitted
over the Internet. These include laws relatinglisoenity, indecency, libel and defamation. We cdagdiable if content delivered by us
violates these regulations.

- Sales and Use Tax. Through December 31, 200@plected sales, use or other taxes on taxabledcdions in all states in which we have
employees. While HealthStream expects that thiscsmh is appropriate, other states or foreign glicttons may seek to impose tax collec
obligations on companies like us that engage imerdommerce. If they do, these obligations comt the growth of electronic commerce
in general and limit our ability to profit from tlsale of our services over the Internet. The enactrof any additional laws or regulations n



impede the growth of the Internet, which could éase our potential revenues or otherwise harm wginéss, financial condition and
operating results.



Laws and regulations directly applicable to@mmerce and Internet communications are becomorg prevalent. The most recent sessic
Congress enacted Internet laws regarding onlingragit infringement. Although not yet enacted, Craags is considering laws regarding
Internet taxation. These are recent enactmentsthend is uncertainty regarding their marketplaapact.

Regulation of Continuing Education for Healthcare Rofessionals

Allied Disciplines. Various allied health professals are required to obtain continuing educatiom#&intain their licenses. For example,
emergency medical services personnel may be rebtaracquire up to 20 continuing education hoursypar. These requirements vary by
state and depend on the classification of the eyeglo

Occupational Safety and Health Administration. OStdgulations require employers to provide trainimgmployees to minimize the risk of
injury from various potential workplace hazards.ftoyers in the healthcare industry are requiregrtwvide training with respect to various
topics including bloodborne pathogens exposurerobéboratory safety and tuberculosis infectiomtrol. OSHA regulations require
employers to keep records of their employees' cetigni of training with respect to these workplaezdrds.

Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare &rigations. The JCAHO imposes continuing educagguirements on physicians that
relate to each physician's specific staff appoimisieln addition, the JCAHO mandates that emploietise healthcare industry provide
certain workplace safety and patient interactiamtng to employees. JCAHO required training magude programs on infection control,
patient bill of rights, radiation safety and inadieeporting. Healthcare organizations are requiogorovide and document training on these
topics to receive JCAHO accreditation.

CE. State nurse practice laws are usually the saafrauthority for establishing the state boardufing, which then establishes the state’
requirements for professional nurses. The contgenfucation units programs are accredited by therfgan Nurses Credentialing Center
Commission on Accreditation and/or the state badmursing. CE requirements vary widely from statstate. Twenty-nine states require
some form of CE in order to renew a nurse's licelrssome states, the CE requirement only appli@s-ticensure of advance practice nurses
or additional CEs may be required of this categdmurses. On average, 12 to 15 CEs are requinedadly, with reporting generally on a bi-
annual basis.

CME. State licensing boards, professional orgaiumatand employers require physicians to certiéit they have accumulated a minimum
number of continuing medical education hours tontzan their licenses. Generally, each state's maégimctice laws authorize the state's
board of medicine to establish and track CME regqugnts. Thirty-four state medical licensing boangisently have CME requirements. The
number of CME hours required by each state ranges 60 hours per year. Other sources of CME requénts are state medical societies
and practice specialty boards. The failure to obtia¢ requisite amount and type of CME could reisutton-renewal of the physician's license
to practice medicine and/or membership in a medicakactice specialty society. The American Meddfssociation's, or AMA's, Physician
Recognition Award, or PRA, is the most widely resizgd certificate for recognizing physician comjaetof a CME course. The AMA
classifies continuing education activities as eitaegory 1, which includes formal CME programsgategory 2, which includes most
informal activities. Sponsors want to designate Cithyvities for AMA PRA category 1 because this hasome the benchmark for quality in
formally organized educational programs. Almostgincies nationwide that require CME participatpacify AMA PRA category 1 credit.
Only institutions and organizations accreditedravjtle CME can designate an activity for AMA PRAegory 1 credit or AMA PRA
category 2 credit. The Accreditation Council on @uming Medical Education, or ACCME, is responsifile the accreditation of medical
schools, state medical societies, and other inistits and organizations that provide CME activifi@sa national or regional audience of
physicians. Only institutions and organizationsareredited. The ACCME and state medical sociefiesot accredit or approve individual
activities. State medical societies, operating uritke aegis of the ACCME, accredit institutions anganizations that provide CME activities
primarily for physicians within the state or boridegr states.

The U.S. Food and Drug Administration and the Fedeal Trade Commission

Current FDA and FTC rules and enforcement actiosragulatory policies or those that the FDA orEi&C may develop in the future could
have a material adverse effect on our ability wvjate existing or future applications or service®tr end users or obtain the necessary
corporate sponsorship to do so. The FDA and the f€fGlate the form, content and dissemination loéliag, advertising and promotional
materials, including direct-toensumer prescription drug and medical device adieg, prepared by, or for, pharmaceutical, bibtestogy ol
medical device companies. The FTC regulates owvectiunter drug advertising and, in some cases,aakdievice advertising. Generally,
regulated companies must limit their advertising promotional materials to discussions of the Flpf+aved claims and, in limited
circumstances, to a limited number of claims ngiraped by the FDA. Therefore, any information thaimotes the use of pharmaceutical or
medical device products that is presented withsewvice is subject to the full array of the FDA &C requirements and enforcement
actions. We believe that banner advertisementssgpship links, and any educational programs tizkt independent editorial control that
may present with our service could be subject t&lBDFTC regulation. While the FDA and the FTC @ahe principal burden of compliar
with advertising and promotional regulations on dldeertiser, if the FDA or FTC finds that any reggel information presented with our
service violates FDA or FTC regulations, they malyetregulatory action against us or the advertisgponsor of that information. In 1996,
the FDA announced it would develop a guidance dantraxpressing a broad set of policies dealing thighpromotion of pharmaceutical,
biotechnology, and medical device products on tiberhet. Although the FDA has yet to issue thatlgnce document, agency officials
continue to predict its eventual release. The FD#lgnce document may reflect new regulatory pditieat more tightly regulate the format
and content of promotional information on the Intdr



INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND OTHER PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

We obtain a portion of our content under licenseagents with publishers or authors, through asségs or work for hire arrangements
with third parties and from internal staff develagmh We require our content partners to represahtaarrant that their content does not
infringe on any third-party copyrights and thatyttave the right to provide their content and halbtained all third-party consents necessary
to do so. Some of our content partners also agreelemnify us against liability we might sustaimedo the content they provide.

To protect our proprietary rights, we rely gengralh copyright, trademark and trade secret lawsfidentiality agreements with employees
and third parties and license agreements with dtargs, vendors and customers. We own the fedexdémark registrations for the marks
"HEALTHSTREAM", "TRAINING NAVIGATOR", and "T.NAV."

OUR EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2000 we employed 227 personss@cess will depend in large part upon our ahiditattract and retain qualified
employees. We face competition in this regard faoiher companies, but we believe that we maintaodgelations with our employees. We
are not subject to any collective bargaining ageres

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following is a brief summary of the businespeazience of each of the executive officers of tleen@any. Officers of the Company are
elected by the Board of Directors and serve apthasure of the Board of Directors. The followiable sets forth certain information
regarding the executive officers of the Company:

NAME AGE POSITION

Robert A. Frist, Jr. 34 Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board of Directors
Arthur E. Newman 52 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offic er

Michael Pote 39 Senior Vice President

Fred Perner 47 Senior Vice President

Scott Portis 34 Vice President of Technology

Stephen Clemens 36 Vice President of Product Development

Robert H. Laird, Jr. 33 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

Susan A. Brownie 36 Vice President of Finance and Corporate Control ler

Jeffrey L. McLaren 34 Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Robert A. Frist, Jr., one of our co-founders, hexsvead as our chief executive officer and chairmihe board of directors since 1990. Mr.
Frist serves on the board of directors of Pasdieaith Communications, an online health insurarezéivation provider and HealthLeaders,
Inc., a healthcare publisher. He graduated wittaeéhBlor of Science in business with concentratiorimance, economics and marketing
from Trinity University. Mr. Frist is the brotherdlaw of Scott Portis, our vice president of tedogg.

Arthur E. Newman has served as our chief finaraffader and senior vice president since Januan026@om April 1990 to August 1999, M
Newman served as executive vice president overgdigiance, human resources, information systemsastbmer service and fulfillment f
Lippincott, Williams and Wilkins, formerly Waverlync., a publicly traded medical sciences publisheMay 1998, Waverly was acquired
by Wolters Kluwer and merged with Wolters Kluwesdsting U.S. based medical publisher, LippincaaiBn Publishers. From August 1999
to January 2000, Mr. Newman served as the chiéht@ogy officer for Wolters Kluwer's scientific,denical and medical companies
consisting of five separate units. Mr. Newman haddachelor of Science in chemistry from the Ursitgrof Miami and a Masters of
Business Administration from Rutgers University.

Michael Pote has served as our senior vice presgiece August 1997. From January 1996 to AuguS7 1®r. Pote served as vice president
of Columbia Health Care Network, a managed caréractor. From August 1994 to June 1996, Mr. Poteeskas vice president and
administrator for Centennial Medical Center. Mrtdeceived a Bachelor of Science and a Mastegeiehce from Syracuse University.

Fred Perner has served as senior vice presidarg Biavember 2000 and senior director from July 2@08ovember 2000. From January
1999 until the June 2000, Mr. Perner served asdmesof Education Design, Inc., a company acquirgtiealthStream in July 2000. Mr.
Perner served as corporate director of marketinghi® Association of periOperative Registered Nsifsem 1996 to 1999. Mr. Perner holds a
Bachelor of Science in General Management and advam Business Administration from Indiana Unsigr. Mr. Perner also holds a J.D.
from the University of Denver College of Law.

Scott Portis has served as our vice presidentcbfi@ogy since 1994. Mr. Portis worked for ElectooRata Systems, a provider of systems
integration services, as an engineering systemisegigin the expert systems and artificial intehge divisions, from 1990 to 1994. He has a
Bachelor of Science in computer engineering fronbdma University. Mr. Portis is the brother-in-laWwRobert A. Frist, Jr. our chief
executive officer, president and chairman of tharto

Stephen Clemens has served as our vice presidendadict development since October 1997. From 1884 to May 1997, Mr. Clemens
served as president of Copernican Systems, Isoftaare and consulting firm. He holds a Bachefd8aience in finance from the University
of Tennessee and a Masters of Business Adminstr&tbom the Owen School of Management at Vandethilversity.






Robert H. Laird, Jr. has served as our vice presided general counsel since March 1997 and segistace October 1999. Mr. Laird also
served as our director of finance from March 198{l INovember 1999. He holds a Bachelor of Art&imglish from Tulane University, a J.
from the University of Tennessee College of Law aridasters of Business Administration from the énsity of Tennessee. Prior to
attending graduate school from 1993 to 1996, Mind_a&vas employed by CIGNA employee benefits, amiasce organization, in contracts
administration from 1991 to 1993.

Susan A. Brownie has served as our vice presiddirtance and corporate controller since Novemt8991 From August 1986 until 1999,
Ms. Brownie worked for KPMG LLP, a public accourgiand consulting firm, most recently as a senionagar. She holds a Bachelor of
Business Administration from the College of Williand Mary.

Jeffrey L. McLaren, one of our co-founders, seraedur president and as one of our directors fr@0 through November 2000 and as our
chief product officer from 1999 through Novembef@0Mr. McLaren currently serves as our vice chamrHe graduated from Trinity
University with a Bachelor of Arts in both businessl philosophy.

RISK FACTORS

We believe that the risks and uncertainties desdrtizlow and elsewhere in this document are tmeipal material risks facing our company
as of the date of this report. In the future, weylnacome subject to additional risks that are motemtly known to us. Our business, financial
condition or results of operations could be matigreedversely affected by any of the following réskrhe trading price of our common stock
could decline due to any of the following risks.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS MODEL.
OUR LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY MAKES EVALUATING OUR  BUSINESS DIFFICULT.

Although we were incorporated in 1990, we did mitiate our online operations until March 1999. &é\result, we have only a limited
operating history on which you can base an evalnaif our business and prospects. Our prospectsheunsidered in light of the risks,
uncertainties, expenses and difficulties frequeetigountered by companies in their early stageewélopment, particularly companies in
new and rapidly evolving markets like ours. Ouluia to successfully address these risks and wringes could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition. Some of thesksiand uncertainties relate to our ability to:

- attract and maintain a large base of customers;

- develop our infrastructure, including additiohardware and software, customer support, pers@miefacilities, to support our business;
- develop and introduce desirable services and etimg content;

- establish and maintain strategic relationshipgh wdntent and distribution partners;

- establish and maintain relationships with sposisod advertisers; and

- respond effectively to competitive and technotagjdevelopments.

VARIABILITY AND LENGTH OF OUR SALES CYCLE FOR OUR P RODUCTS AND SERVICES AS WELL AS OUR PRODUCT
MIX MAY MAKE OUR OPERATING RESULTS UNPREDICTABLE AN D VOLATILE.

The period from our initial contact with a potehastomer and the first purchase of our solutigihe customer typically ranges from three
to nine months, and in some cases has extended fomticér. In addition the revenue recognition pielécfor sales of ASP and other services
vary significantly from our installed products. Asesult of both of these factors, we have onlytéchability to forecast the timing and type
of sales. This, in turn, makes it more difficultgedict quarterly financial performance.

FAILURE TO EFFECTIVELY MANAGE GROWTH OF OUR OPERATI ONS AND INFRASTRUCTURE COULD DISRUPT OUR
OPERATIONS AND PREVENT US FROM GENERATING THE REVEN UES WE EXPECT.

We currently are experiencing a period of expansiavur end user traffic, personnel, facilities amilastructure. Our number of employees
more than doubled between December 31, 1999 andniilezr 31, 2000. In addition, we anticipate a r&pidansion in end user traffic on our
Web site and the co-branded Web sites we operateonr distribution partners. To manage our growté,must successfully implement,
constantly improve and effectively utilize our opgtéonal and financial systems. We must also mairdad strengthen the breadth and depth
of our current strategic relationships while rapidéveloping new relationships. Our existing ompled operational and financial systems

not be sufficient to support our growth, and ounagement may not be able to effectively identifgnage and exploit existing and emerging
market opportunities. If we do not adequately managy potential growth, our business will suffer.

THE MARKET FOR ONLINE TRAINING AND CONTINUING EDUCA TION IN THE HEALTHCARE INDUSTRY IS NEW AND



RAPIDLY EVOLVING.

Uncertainty as to the level of demand and marke¢pt@ance for online training and continuing edwratn the healthcare industry exposes us
to a high degree of risk. We cannot assure youtligahealthcare community will completely adoptimaltraining and continuing education

a replacement for, or alternative to, traditioralrges of training and continuing education. Madateptance of online training and
continuing education depends upon continued gramvthe use of the Internet generally and, in paldic as a source of continuing education
services. If the market for online training and twoaning education fails to develop, develops mdogvly than expected, becomes saturated
with competitors, or services do not achieve otaingnarket acceptance, our business will suffer.

HEALTHSTREAM MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MAINTAIN ITS COMPETTIVE POSITION AGAINST CURRENT AND POTENTIAL
COMPETITORS, ESPECIALLY THOSE WITH SIGNIFICANTLY GRATER FINANCIAL, MARKETING, TECHNICAL AND OTHER
RESOURCES.

Several of HealthStream's competitors have longerating histories and significantly greater finahaechnical, marketing and other
resources than HealthStream, and several of therlarlearning companies have announced theirtiotento enter the healthcare e-learning
market. These companies may be able to respond aquarily than HealthStream to new or changing opputies, technologies, standards
customer requirements. In addition, if such conmpetiwere to offer a complete e-learning solutimthie healthcare industry, HealthStream's
competitive position could be adversely affected.



WE MAY BE UNABLE TO IMPLEMENT OUR GROWTH STRATEGY, WHICH COULD HAVE AN ADVERSE EFFECT ON
OUR BUSINESS AND COMPETITIVE POSITION IN THE INDUST RY.

Our business strategy includes increasing our nhatae and presence through strategic acquisiti@somplement or enhance our
business, and we have recently consummated a nuwhbequisitions involving multiple remote offica&le do not have substantial
experience in completing and integrating large &itons or multiple simultaneous acquisitionsalfdition, we do not have experience
operating multiple remote offices. We may haveidiifity integrating the operations and realizing tbsults of these recently completed
acquisitions. We may not be able to identify, costg)] or integrate the operations or realize thigipated results of future acquisitions. Some
of the risks that we may encounter in implementingacquisition growth strategy include:

- expenses, delays and difficulties of integratimg acquired company into our existing organization

- diversion of management's attention from othesifess matters;

- expenses associated with and difficulties in iging potential targets and the costs associatighl acquisitions that are not completed;
- expenses of amortizing the acquired companyamgible assets;

- adverse impact on our financial condition dughtiming of the acquisition; and

- expenses of any undisclosed or potential liabgdibf the acquired company.

If any of these risks are realized, our businessdcsuffer.

OUR FUTURE SUCCESS DEPENDS, IN PART, ON REVENUES FRM SPONSORSHIPS, AND THE ACCEPTANCE AND
EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNET SPONSORSHIP IS UNCERTAIN.

We plan to derive significant revenues from sposisips in conjunction with our online training arehtinuing education services. The
market for corporate sponsorship on the Interneeis and rapidly evolving. Many sponsors have Baiiexperience with Internet
sponsorship, and may ultimately conclude that iteesponsorships are not effective relative toitiathl sponsorship opportunities. As a
result, the market for sponsorship on the Intenma&y not continue to emerge or become sustainahle.rfiakes it difficult to project our
future sponsorship revenues and rates. If the méskénternet sponsorship fails to develop or depe more slowly than we expect, our
business will suffer.

WITHOUT THE CONTINUED DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE O F THE INTERNET AND THE AVAILABILITY OF
INCREASED BANDWIDTH TO CONSUMERS, OUR BUSINESS MAY NOT SUCCEED.

Given the online nature of our business, withoatdbntinued development and maintenance of thenktténfrastructure, we could fail to
meet our overall strategic objectives and ultimafall to generate the user traffic and revenueexgect. This continued development of the
Internet includes maintenance of a reliable netwaitk the necessary speed, data capacity and sgasiwell as timely development of
complementary products for providing reliable Inefraccess and services. Because commerce ortéheeinand the online exchange of
information is new and evolving, we cannot predibether the Internet will prove to be a viable coenoial marketplace in the long term.
The success of our business will rely on the comtthimprovement of the Internet as a convenientedficlent means of information and
content distribution.

Our business depends on the ability of our endsusesiccess and use our courseware, as well antluct commercial transactions with us,
without significant delays or aggravation that neyassociated with decreased availability of Idebandwidth and access to our Web sites.
Our penetration of a broader consumer market \gjtleshd, in part, on continued proliferation of higieed Internet access. The Internet has
experienced, and is likely to continue to experigrsignificant growth in the numbers of users amdant of traffic. As the Internet continues
to experience increased numbers of users, incrdesgakbncy of use and increased bandwidth requinesnthe Internet infrastructure may be
unable to support the demands placed on it. Intiaddincreased users or bandwidth requirementsimpgir the performance of the Intern
The Internet has experienced a variety of outagdsother delays as a result of damage to portibits mfrastructure, and it could face
outages and delays in the future. These outagedelags could reduce the level of Internet usageedkas the level of traffic, and could
result in the Internet becoming an inconvenienirs@conomical source of continuing education anditrg.

The infrastructure and complementary products origes necessary to make the Internet a viableaghimal media and commercial
marketplace for the long term may not be develapeatessfully or in a timely manner. Even if thesmdpcts or services are developed, the
Internet may not become a viable educational medinchcommercial marketplace for the services tteabffer.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO MAINTAIN OUR EXISTING RELATIONS HIPS WITH OUR DISTRIBUTION PARTNERS OR TO
BUILD NEW RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHER DISTRIBUTION PAR TNERS.

If we are not successful in developing and enhanounr relationships with distribution partners, eggild become less competitive and



revenues could decline. We formed our existingti@iahips recently, and our distribution partneeymot view their relationships with us as
significant to the success of their business. Assalt, they may reassess their commitment to ulecide to compete directly with us in the
future. We generally do not have agreements thadtipit our distribution partners from competing ega us directly or from contracting with
our competitors. Arrangements with our distributfartners generally do not establish minimum penforce requirements, but instead rely
on the voluntary efforts of our distribution pantaeAs a result, these relationships may not beessful. Certain agreements with distribution
partners may require guaranteed royalty paymenéscavinot assure you that we will be able to geeesaticient revenues to recoup the
minimum payments that we are obligated to pay @atridution partners. The failure to do so would&a material adverse effect on our
results of operations.

PROTECTION OF CERTAIN PROPRIETARY TRADEMARKS AND DO MAIN NAMES MAY BE DIFFICULT AND COSTLY.

Despite protection of certain proprietary tradersaakd domain names, a third party could, withoth@rization, copy or otherwise
appropriate our content or other information fronn database. Our agreements with employees, cansutind others who participate in
development activities could be breached. We mayhaee adequate remedies for any breach, andams secrets may otherwise become
known or independently developed by competitoraddition, the laws of some foreign countries dbprotect our proprietary rights to the
same extent as the laws of the United States, ff@ctige copyright, trademark and trade secretqutddn may not be available in those
jurisdictions. We currently hold seve!



domain names. The legal status of intellectual @riypon the Internet is currently subject to vasiaucertainties. The current system for
registering, allocating and managing domain nanassbieen the subject of litigation and proposedlaggry reform. Additionally, legislative
proposals have been made by the federal goverrtimantvould afford broad protection to owners ofafi@ses of information, such as stock
quotes. This protection of databases already existee European Union. There have been substantialints of litigation in the computer
and online industries regarding intellectual prépessets. Third parties may claim infringementbywith respect to current and future
products, trademarks or other proprietary rights, @e may counterclaim against such parties in agtibons. Any such claims or
counterclaims could be time-consuming, result istlgditigation, divert management's attention, ssaproduct release delays, require us to
redesign our products or require us to enter ioy@lty or licensing agreements, any of which cdwdge a material adverse effect upon our
business, financial condition and operating res@tgh royalty and licensing agreements may n@tviadable on terms acceptable to us, if at
all.

FINANCIAL RISKS

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO FORECAST OUR REVENUES ACCURAT ELY BECAUSE WE HAVE A LIMITED OPERATING
HISTORY.

As a result of our limited operating history, wertat have historical financial data for a significaumber of periods upon which to forecast
quarterly revenues and results of operations. Weusethat period-to-period comparisons of our atieg results are not meaningful and
should not be relied upon as indicators of futdgrmance. In addition, our operating results mary substantially. The actual effect of
these factors on the price of our stock, howevdl be difficult to assess due to our limited ogérg history. In one or more future quarters,
our results of operations may fall below the exatiehs of securities analysts and investors, aedrtding price of our common stock may
decline.

WE EXPECT NET LOSSES IN THE FUTURE AND MAY NEVER AC HIEVE PROFITABILITY.

In 2000, we had a net loss of approximately $20GIBam. At December 31, 2000, our accumulated defias $29.2 million. We expect
substantial net losses and negative cash flow girai least 2001. With increased expenses, wanedltl to generate significant additional
revenues in order to achieve profitability. As aule we may never achieve or sustain profitahility

OUR REVENUE RECOGNITION IS DEPENDENT UPON ACHIEVENIH OF CERTAIN EVENTS, AND OUR INABILITY TO
RECOGNIZE REVENUE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OUR EXPECTATNS WILL HARM OUR OPERATING RESULTS.

In accordance with our revenue recognition polawy, ability to record revenues depends upon seVactdrs. These factors include
completion and acceptance by our customers of dpedlcontent and courseware and utilization ofsmware both in connection with
sponsorships and subscription ASP arrangementde\Wii customer contracts have not historicallyjated for minimum levels of
participant registration or course completion, oastr requirements may demand such contract featuthe future. Further, delivery of
customer-specific data is required for us to impahtustomers on our ASP platform. Accordinglhgugtomers do not provide us with the
specified information in a timely manner, our agilio recognize revenues will be delayed, whichl@édwarm our operating results.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO MEET OUR STRATEGIC BUSINESSEJIECTIVES UNLESS WE OBTAIN ADDITIONAL FINANCING,
WHICH MAY NOT BE AVAILABLE TO US ON FAVORABLE TERMSOR AT ALL.

The net proceeds of our initial public offering,|BO, and the preceding private offerings of ounomn and preferred stock, together with
our current cash reserves, are expected to beisuiftfito meet our cash requirements through at Bxl. However, we may need to raise
additional funds in order to:

- acquire complementary businesses, technologiesent or products;
- finance working capital requirements;

- develop or enhance existing services or products;

- respond to competitive pressures;

- sustain content, distribution and developmentrgeairelationships; or
- maintain required infrastructure to support ousihess.

At December 31, 2000, we had approximately $411bamiin cash, cash equivalents, restricted casrestments and related interest
receivable. In addition, we have fixed commitmesftapproximately $302,000 in 2001 and other vaagdyments will be due based on
revenues and certain milestones related to agreaeméth content, distribution and development parsn These commitments may increase
over time as a result of competitive pressureseWct to incur approximately $3.0 to $5.0 millimircapital expenditures during 2001 to
support our business. We expect operating losskaegative cash flows to continue through at 1286tL. We cannot assure you t



additional financing will be available on terms daable to us, or at all. If adequate funds areanailable or are not available on acceptable
terms, our ability to fund our expansion, take adage of available opportunities, develop or enkag@rvices or products or otherwise
respond to competitive pressures would be sigmiflgdimited. If we raise additional funds by isagiequity or convertible debt securities,
percentage ownership of our shareholders will beced, and these securities may have rights, gretes or privileges senior to those of our
shareholders.

REVENUES FROM CONTENT DEPEND, IN PART, ON OUR OBTAI NING PROPER OWNERSHIP AND DISTRIBUTION
RIGHTS FROM OUR CONTENT PARTNERS.

Most of our agreements with content providers ararfitial terms of one to three years. The confentners may choose not to renew their
agreements with us or may terminate the agreeneantgif we do not fulfill our contractual obligatis. If a significant number of our contt
providers terminate or fail to renew their agreetaavith us on acceptable terms, it could resu#t reduction in the number of courses we are
able to distribute and decreased revenues. Masirofigreements with our content partners are aseemclusive, and our competitors offer,
or could offer, training and continuing educati@amtent that is similar to or the same as oursulflighers and authors, including our current
content partners, offer information to users or@ampetitors on more favorable terms than thoseredf to us or increase our license fees
competitive position and our profit margins andgpects could be harmed. In addition, the failur@liycontent partners to deliver high-
quality content and to continuously upgrade theirtent in response to user demand and evolvinghuaaé advances and trends could result
in user dissatisfaction and inhibit our abilityatiract users.



RISKS RELATED TO SALES, MARKETING AND COMPETITION

WE EXPECT COMPETITION TO INCREASE SIGNIFICANTLY IN  THE FUTURE WHICH COULD REDUCE OUR
REVENUES, POTENTIAL PROFITS AND OVERALL MARKET SHAR E.

The market for traditional and online training armhtinuing education services is competitive. Ragito entry on the Internet are relatively
low, and we expect competition to increase sigaifity in the future. We face competitive pressidiresn numerous actual and potential
competitors, both online and offline, many of whitdwve longer operating histories, greater brandenaoognition, larger consumer bases
significantly greater financial, technical and nmetiiig resources than we do. We cannot assure ybwiiine training and continuing
education services provided by our existing an@ k| competitors will not be perceived by thelttemre community as being superior to
ours.

IF WE FAIL TO COLLECT ACCURATE AND USEFUL DATA ABOU OUR END USERS, POTENTIAL SPONSORS MAY NOT
SUPPORT OUR SERVICES, WHICH MAY RESULT IN REDUCEIPSNSORSHIP REVENUES.

We plan to use data about our end users to expeafiite and target our marketing and sales effovis.collect most of our data from end u:
who report information to us as they register fourses on our Web site, or our distribution pagh@feb sites. If a large proportion of users
are unwilling to provide data or if they falsifytdaour marketing and sales efforts would be Iéfestve since sponsors generally require
detailed demographic data on their target audienoeslidition, laws relating to privacy and the o$¢he Internet to collect personal
information could limit our ability to collect datnd utilize our database. Failure to collect aatiand useful data could result in a
substantial reduction in sponsorship revenues.

RISKS RELATED TO OPERATIONS

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO ADEQUATELY DEVELOP OUR SYSTEMS, PROCESSES AND SUPPORT IN A MANNER THAT
WILL ENABLE US TO MEET THE DEMAND FOR OUR SERVICES.

We have provided our online products and servioetets than two years and continue to develobility to provide our courses and
education management systems on both a subscragotiransactional basis over the Internet. Owréusuccess will depend on our ability
develop effectively the infrastructure, includindd#tional hardware and software, and implemensteices, including customer support,
necessary to meet the demand for our servicebelpwent we are not successful in developing thessary systems and implementing the
necessary services on a timely basis, our reverudd be adversely affected, which would have eenmtadverse effect on our financial
condition. In addition, in February 2000, we entkirgo a four-year agreement with HCA - The HeadtiecCompany (HCA), formerly known
as Columbia/HCA Healthcare Corporation, to provade ASP services. HCA currently represents the nitgjof our ASP business. HCA has
the right to terminate this agreement if we faitigiver the required services under this agreermermat timely basis. A termination of our
agreement with HCA would have a material adversecebn our business as well as our ability to seather large customers for these
services.

OUR BUSINESS OPERATIONS COULD BE SIGNIFICANTLY DISR UPTED IF WE LOSE MEMBERS OF, OR FAIL TO
INTEGRATE, OUR MANAGEMENT TEAM.

Our future performance will be substantially depamtcbn the continued services of our management &l our ability to retain and
motivate them. The loss of the services of anywfaificers or senior managers could harm our lassinas we may not be able to find
suitable replacements. We do not have employmeaeeatents with any of our key personnel, other tharchief executive officer, and we
do not maintain any "key person" life insuranceiges.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO HIRE AND RETAIN A SUFFICIENTNUMBER OF QUALIFIED EMPLOYEES AND, AS A RESULT, WE
MAY NOT BE ABLE TO GROW AS WE EXPECT OR MAINTAIN Ti# QUALITY OF OUR SERVICES.

Our future success will depend on our ability tioaat, train, retain and motivate other highly Edltechnical, managerial, marketing and
customer support personnel. Competition for thesegmnel is intense, especially for engineers, Wésigners and sales personnel, and we
may be unable to successfully attract sufficiegtialified personnel. We have experienced difficityhe past hiring qualified personnel in a
timely manner for these positions. The pool of fieal technical personnel, in particular, is lindten Nashville, Tennessee, which is where
our headquarters are located. We will need to raairihe size of our staff to support our anticiplageowth, without compromising the qua

of our offerings or customer service. Our inabitilylocate, hire, integrate and retain qualifiedspanel in sufficient numbers may reduce the
quality of our services.

WE MUST CONTINUE TO UPGRADE OUR TECHNOLOGY INFRASTR UCTURE, OR WE WILL BE UNABLE TO
EFFECTIVELY MEET DEMAND FOR OUR SERVICES.

We must continue to add hardware and enhance seftwaccommodate the increased content in owrlitand increased use of our as well
as our distribution partners' Web sites. In ordentke timely decisions about hardware and softeah@ncements, we must be able to
accurately forecast the growth in demand for owrises. This growth in demand for our services dd# difficult to forecast and the
potential audience for our services is large. Ifake unable to increase the data storage and gingesapacity of our systems at least as



as the growth in demand, our systems may becontehlasand may fail to operate for unknown periofinoe. Unscheduled downtime
could harm our business and also could discouragert and potential end users and reduce futwentees.

OUR DATA AND WEB SERVER SYSTEMS MAY STOP WORKING OWRORK IMPROPERLY DUE TO NATURAL DISASTERS,
FAILURE OF THIRD-PARTY SERVICES AND OTHER UNEXPECTEPROBLEMS.

An unexpected event like a power or telecommurocatifailure, fire, flood or earthquake at our ae-slata facility or at our Internet service
providers' facilities could cause the loss of catidata and prevent us from offering our servi@as. business interruption insurance may not
adequately compensate us for losses that may docaddition, we rely on third parties to securslgre our archived data, house our Web
server and network systems and connect us to tambt. The failure by any of these third parteprtovide these services satisfactorily and
our inability to find suitable replacements woutdpiair our ability to access archives and operatesgstems.

WE MAY LOSE USERS AND LOSE REVENUES IF OUR ONLINE SECURITY MEASURES FAIL.

If the security measures that we use to protecqmad information are ineffective, we may lose as#rour services, which could reduce our
revenues. We rely on security and authenticatiohrtelogy licensed from third parties. With thishaology, we perform realme credit carc
authorization and verification. We cannot preditiether these security measures could be circumddayt@ew technological developments.
In addition, our software, databases and serveyst@aulnerable to computer viruses, physical ectebnic breakns and similar disruption
We
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may need to spend significant resources to preigainst security breaches or to alleviate problemused by any breaches. We cannot assure
you that we can prevent all security breac

RISKS RELATED TO GOVERNMENT REGULATION, CONTENT AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
GOVERNMENT REGULATION MAY REQUIRE US TO CHANGE THE WAY WE DO BUSINESS.

The laws and regulations that govern our businkaage rapidly. The United States government angdkwernments of states and foreign
countries have attempted to regulate activitietherinternet. Evolving areas of law that are reh¢ta our business include privacy law,
proposed encryption laws, content regulation atessand use tax laws and regulations. Becausésofapidly evolving and uncertain
regulatory environment, we cannot predict how tHase and regulations might affect our businessaddition, these uncertainties make it
difficult to ensure compliance with the laws andulkations governing the Internet. These laws agdlegions could harm us by subjecting us
to liability or forcing us to change how we do mess. See "Business&overnment Regulation of the Internet and the tHeate Industry" fc

a more complete discussion of these laws and reguga

WE MAY BE LIABLE TO THIRD PARTIES FOR CONTENT THAT IS AVAILABLE FROM OUR ONLINE LIBRARY.

We may be liable to third parties for the contenbur online library if the text, graphics, soft@ar other content in our library violates
copyright, trademark, or other intellectual progeights, our content partners violate their coctimal obligations to others by providing
content to our library or the content does not oomfto accepted standards of care in the healtlprafession. We may also be liable for
anything that is accessible from our Web site ardistribution partners' Web sites through link®tber Web sites. We attempt to minimize
these types of liabilities by requiring represeota and warranties relating to our content pastrmrnership of, the rights to distribute as
well as the accuracy of their content. We also ted@essary measures to review this content oussehlihough our agreements with our
content partners contain provisions providing fatemnification by the content providers in the éwarinaccurate content, we cannot assure
you that our content partners will have the finahoésources to meet this obligation. Alleged ligbtould harm our business by damag
our reputation, requiring us to incur legal costsléfense, exposing us to awards of damages atslaius diverting management's attention
away from our business. See "Business - Intellé&r@perty and Other Proprietary Rights” for a mooenplete discussion of the potential
effects of this liability on our business.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO PROTECT OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPER TY, AND WE MAY BE LIABLE FOR INFRINGING THE
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF OTHERS.

Our business could be harmed if unauthorized gainiieinge upon or misappropriate our proprietargtems, content, services or other
information. Our efforts to protect our intelleckpaoperty through copyright, trademarks and ottartrols may not be adequate. In the
future, litigation may be necessary to enforceintellectual property rights or to determine thdidity and scope of the proprietary rights of
others, which could be time consuming and costiiellectual property infringement claims could bada against us as the number of our
competitors grows. These claims, even if not madts, could be expensive and divert our attenfiiom operating our company. In additic

if we become liable to third parties for infringittgeir intellectual property rights, we could bguied to pay a substantial damage award and
develop comparable non-infringing intellectual pedy, to obtain a license or to cease providingcthrtent or services that contain the
infringing intellectual property. We may be unatdedevelop non-infringing intellectual propertyaistain a license on commercially
reasonable terms, or at all.

ANY REDUCTION IN THE REGULATION OF CONTINUING EDUCA TION AND TRAINING IN THE HEALTHCARE
INDUSTRY MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS.

Our business model is dependent in part on reqtrieéting and continuing education for healthcanagssionals and other healthcare
workers resulting from regulations of state anddfabdagencies, state licensing boards and profeslsimganizations. Any change in these
regulations that reduce the requirements for caiitneducation and training for the healthcare gtigucould harm our business.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive offices are located in Nakd, Tennessee. Our lease for approximately 24 &ifuiare feet at this location expires in
2005. The lease provides for two five-year renewpdions. Rent at this location is $17,903 per mahtbugh February 2001; $18,204 per
month from March 2001 through February 2004; arél 31 per month from March 2004 through April 20@& are currently negotiating
terms for additional contiguous space at our Ndkhlveadquarters that will increase our total sgqdaotage to approximately 34,000.

As a result of our acquisition of SilverPlatter Edtion, we are leasing approximately 2,600 squaeedf office space in Boston,
Massachusetts until December 31, 2001. Rent fergp@ce is $5,200 per month. Storage space igllease month-to-month basis at the rate
of $687 per month.

As a result of our acquisition of EMInet, we aradimg approximately 2,180 square feet of officecega Houston, Texas until September 30,
2001. Rent for this space is $2,180 per monthelor&rary 2001, we entered into an agreement to ietmithis agreement for a settlement of
approximately $11,00(



As a result of our acquisition of m3, we are legsipproximately 7,500 square feet of office spadeallas, Texas. The Dallas lease expires
on October 31, 2006 and has a monthly rent of 10,0

As a result of our acquisition of Education Desige, are leasing approximately 8,000 square feeffife space in Denver, Colorado. The
Denver lease expires on June 30, 2005 and has oattt of $8,049 through June 30, 2001; $8,558ubh June 30, 2002; $9,055 through
June 30, 2003; $ 9,558 through June 30, 2004 a@®d&1 through June 30, 2005.

As a result of our acquisition of SynQuest Techgis, we are leasing approximately 7,500 squareofezffice space in Raleigh, North
Carolina. The Raleigh lease expires on June 30, 28d has monthly rent of $10,783.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On November 17, 2000, a complaint was filed inGlireuit Court of Tennessee for the Thirtieth Juali@istrict at Memphis against us,
SynQuest Technologies, Inc. and two individual shalders of SynQuest Technologies. The complaserésthat HealthStream violated the
terms of a licensing agreement entered into betwisaithStream and the plaintiff and that Health&@trellegedly failed to pay royalties due
to the plaintiff pursuant to the terms of that agnent. The plaintiff also alleges that HealthStréasuced SynQuest Technologies to brea
marketing agreement entered into between SynQuddhe plaintiff. Alternatively, the plaintiff altges that HealthStream, which purchased
certain assets of SynQuest, is liable for SynQaiafitged breach of the marketing agreement pursodhe legal theory of successor liabil
The aggregate damages alleged total approxima®elyrsillion. We believe the allegations in the cdanpt are without merit, intend to
defend the litigation vigorously and do not belighis litigation will have a material adverse effea our financial condition or results of
operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.
PART II.
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

We completed the initial public offering of our comn stock on April 10, 2000. Our common stock hearbtraded on the Nasdaq National
Market under the symbol "HSTM" since April 10, 20@0ior to that date, there was no public markebfor common stock and, therefore, no
guoted market prices for our common stock are alililfor the year ended December 31, 1999 or theepuended March 31, 2000. The
following table sets forth, for the periods indiedf the high and low sales prices per share afdh@mon stock as reported on the Nasdaq
National Market;

HIGH LOW
2000
Second Quarter (April 11 though June 30, 2000) ... e, $10.13 $3.63
Third Quarter.......cccoovviviiiiiiiiiiieeeeees e, 5.75 1.88
Fourth Quarter......ccccovvvveeieeieieeeeeeeeeees e 2.63 0.75

On March 13, 2001, there were 238 registered hslded approximately 1,950 beneficial holders of@mmon stock. Because many of s
shares are held by brokers and other institutionsahalf of shareholders, we are unable to estithatéotal number of shareholders
represented by these record holders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsiocommon stock, and we do not anticipate pagash dividends in the foreseeable
future. We intend to retain earnings to financeekpansion of our operations.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
The Registrant has sold and issued the followimggistered securities since April 10, 2000:

- On July 1, 2000, 184,421 shares of our commocksieere issued to Association of Operating Roomsisiy Inc. for an acquisition of the
assets of Education Design, Inc. for an aggrede$d 600,000 under
Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, in which no fubolicitations were made;

- On September 18, 2000, 787,087 shares of our @onatock were issued to the shareholders of SynQeesinologies, Inc. for an
acquisition of the assets of SynQuest Technologyes for an aggregate of $1,672,560 under Sed{@h of the Securities Act, in which no
public solicitations were made;

- On January 26, 2001, 181,250 shares of our constomk were issued to Lippincott William & Wilkingc. for an acquisition of the assets
of de'MEDICI Systems, a business unit owned andaipd by Lippincott William & Wilkins, Inc., for anggregate of $300,186 under Sec
4(2) of the Securities Act, in which no public sdtions were made.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On April 10, 2000 our Registration Statement omir&-1 (File No. 333-88939) was declared effectiyehe Securities and Exchange
Commission. Pursuant to the Registration Statementegistered and sold 5,275,000 shares of constowhk at a price of $9.00 per share.
The managing underwriters were FleetBoston Robei$éephens, Inc. The aggregate price of the amuftered and sold was $47,475,01



In connection with the issuance and distributiothef securities registered, the Company paid $32883related to underwriting discounts
and commissions and approximately $2,000,000 afratkpenses.

The net offering proceeds to the Company after diéaly the total expenses noted above were appraeiynd42,200,000. From the effective
date of the Registration Statement through Febrd@r2001, we have used approximately $5,900,0@bBeofet offering proceeds to fund
general operating expenses, acquisitions and oitbeking capital needs.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected statements of operations data fahtke-year period ended December 31, 2000 andahede sheet data as of December 31,
1999 and 2000 are derived from our financial steteismithat have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP jimdependent auditors, and are
included elsewhere in this report. The data foryiber ended December 31, 1997 and the balanceddteeds of December 31, 1998 are
derived from audited financial statements thatimckided in our initial filing on Form S-1 (Reg. N833-88939). The data for the year ended
December 31, 1996 and the balance sheet data atribec 31, 1996 are derived from unaudited finarstetements that are not included in
this filing. You should read the following selectiithncial data in conjunction with our financighements and the notes to those statements
and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fied@ondition and Results of Operations" locateskelhere in this report.

As discussed in "Acquisitions" elsewhere in thisa®, HealthStream acquired 7 companies during E9@02000. As a result of these
acquisitions, the annual results presented belewmatr comparable. In addition, revenues may beesuly fluctuations as discussed further in
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finan€idition and Results of Operations” located elsrelin this report. The operating
results for any single year are not necessarilicative of the results to be expected in the future

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DAT A)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenues $ 556 $1,268 $1,716 $2,568 $ 9,652
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues 475 870 1,057 2,119 4,146

Product development 142 294 443 2,037 5,639

Selling, general and administrative expenses 675 875 1,477 2,972 22,540

Total operating costs and expenses 1,292 2,039 2,977 7,128 32,325

Loss from operations (736) (771) (1,261) (4,560) (22,673)
Other income (expense) (43) (189) (329) 104 2,388
Net loss $ (779) $ (960) $(1,590) $(4,456) $(20,285)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $(0.25) $(0.29) $(0.49) $(1.19) $ (1.29)
Weighted average shares of common stock

outstanding - basic and diluted 3,069 3,256 3,256 3,757 15,786

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000

(IN THOUSANDS)

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 29 $ 84 $ 51 $13,632 $19,831
Investments - short and long term -- -- -- - 20,341
Working capital (deficit) (604) (1,708) (2,854) 11,465 26,437
Total assets 540 948 1,153 17,455 70,452
Deferred revenue -- 236 323 791 2,764

Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current p ortion 57 36 32 186 216

Shareholders' equity (deficit) (276) (1,236) (2,285) 14,190 62,017
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of the financial conditiand results of operations of HealthStream shoelteld in conjunction with "Selected
Financial Data" and HealthStream's Consolidatedrgial Statements and related notes thereto indlatiewhere in this report. This
discussion contains forward-looking statementsithadlve risks and uncertainties. HealthStreamteadaesults may differ significantly from
the results discussed and those anticipated i floesward-looking statements as a result of mantofa, including but not limited to, those
described under "Risk Factors" and elsewhere grdport.

OVERVIEW

HealthStream was originally incorporated in 1996 anitiated online operations in March 1999. Then(any developed from a company
with an initial focus of providing multimedia todisr information dissemination to a facilitator to&ining tools for entities in the healthcare
industry. Revenues are derived from the followiatgegories: provision of services through our agpian service provider (ASP) product,
content subscriptions, license of installed leagmmanagement systems, maintenance and technigadrsgervices, content and courseware
development, sponsorship services, sales of CD-R@Mucts, Web cast events, event development agjistnagion services, Web site
development, online products and training servitkstorically, we have referred to these categdresdly as services distributed through
our ASP model and services distributed throughwidab distribution network. While our historical rétsuare presented in this format, during
2001, the Company will begin presenting its restiissified as either services to healthcare orgdioins or services to pharmaceutical and
medical device companies.

ASP services and content subscriptions are providesl per person subscription basis for a mon#gyrénging from over $1.00 to more than
$6 per month, based on the size of the facility tmedcontent offerings. Contracts range from $5 j@0@pproximately $400,000 based on the
duration of the contract, number of users and edriteolved. Revenue derived from the provisiorsefvices through our ASP products are
recognized ratably over the term of the serviceagent. The Company also offers training servioce&\6P users to facilitate integration of
this technology. Fees for training are based orithe and efforts of the personnel involved. Ottnansaction-based online services are
provided based on a fee ranging from $5 to $25upderlying credit hour, or based upon access tdg bf content for a defined period of
time. Most courses provide one to three credit fiduowever, during 2000 we began selling boarderewiourses that include significantly
more credit. We recognize revenue for online supgon services ratably over the subscription pgand recognize revenue for transaction-
based online course sales when the course is dedivEraining revenues are recognized upon conapletf training services. Late in 1999,
we began entering into sponsorship agreementtbgide for sponsorship of online courseware. Speisp revenue is recognized ratably
over the term unless usage exceeds the ratablemois discussed in "Risk Factors" above, revaegegnition policies for ASP and other
services vary significantly from our installed puowts.

Revenues from installed learning management sytemare recognized upon shipment or installatidhesoftware. The one-time license
fee typically ranges from $20,000 to $200,000 basethe number of users. Revenues related to liedtielarning management systems may
be subject to fluctuations because purchase oé theenses typically are included in customersitahpxpenditure budgets. Services such as
training, maintenance and technical support areigea either based on a fixed fee, estimated usagetual time incurred. Maintenance and
technical support revenues are recognized ovetethe of the service period. Revenues derived fioenstle of products requiring significant
modification, conversion or customization are releat based on the percentage of completion methind labor hours. Training revenues
recognized upon completion of training services. Mgnize multimedia development revenues bas¢deopercentage of a project that is
completed. We recognize revenue from live evenelbgpment services based on the percentage of cbmplaethod using labor hours.
Event registration services are recognized uporpietion of the related event. All other servicearues are recognized as the related
services are performed or products are deliveraldsSf products and services to pharmaceuticah@dical device companies can be
subject to seasonal factors as a result of drugpasdiict introductions and budget cycles for sumnganies.

Revenues provided under a service agreement ttlatied the grant of a warrant to HCArformation Technology & Services, Inc., forme
Columbia Information Services, an affiliate of HEAhe Healthcare Company, formerly Columbia/HCAllgdively referred to herein as
"HCA") are recognized as services are renderedyfitée amortization of the fair value of the reldtvarrant as a reduction of the revenues
proportionately over the term of the four-year agnent. The related amortization will fluctuate lshea the revenues received from this
agreement and will vary as a percentage of revelbassd on the estimated revenues over the couthe afjreement. See Note 4 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Historically,hage marketed our training and education deliggstem directly or licensed it to resell
to redbrand and distribute under their private label. Pimary reseller relationship was with Lippinc@illiams & Wilkins, Inc. ("LWW"), a
leading medical sciences publisher. LWW's busineds de'MEDICI Systems, combined its line of OSHAd JCAHO training content with
our installed learning management systems and $hés force sold the resulting solution direatlpihealthcare organizations. In January
2001, we purchased de'MEDICI Systems from LWW agliaed the existing base of more than 200 custemer

We expect to continue to generate revenues by rilagkeur Web-based services to healthcare workeosigh healthcare organizations. We
expect that the portion of our revenues relategktwices provided via our ASP agreements will iasee Specifically, we will seek to gener
revenues from healthcare workers by marketing e #fmployers or sponsoring organizations. Thestation fees for courseware resulting
from this marketing may either be paid by the emtar sponsoring organization or, in the caseeafithcare professionals, may be billed
directly to the individual. Our ASP model allowstashost our system in a central data center, thereliminating the need for costly onsite
installations of our software. Under the ASP modalenues are generated by charging for use ofamunseware on a subscription basis. In
addition, we will continue to sell services on d\eb site on a transaction basis.

In February 2000, the Company entered into e-year agreement with WebMD Corporation, formerly Heson/WebMD, ("“WebMD"). The



agreement provided that the Company would be tobkisixe provider of education, continuing educatmnl training services for all
healthcare organizations, healthcare professi@rashealthcare workers on all Web sites owned eraipd by WebMD. The Company
committed to pay WebMD a guaranteed minimum royaft$6.0 million per year. The agreement also ptedithat the Company would
receive 100% of any revenues from the sale ofritelyicts and services until all payments to WebMDewecovered, and after that revenues
would be shared 75% to the Company and 25% to WeBME&bMD also committed to purchase $10.0 milliothaf Company's common
stock in a private sale that closed concurrent wighCompany's IPO. WebMD also agreed to providiremarketing and co-branding
services to the Company under this
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agreement. During 2000, the Company expensed add\ebMD $1.5 million. At December 31, 2000, then@many accrued but did not pay
royalties related to this agreement of $1.5 millibaring January 2001, the Company terminatedrits pgreement with WebMD and set
forth a new business arrangement. Under the nemgrolusive thregrear agreement, the Company will be a preferredigen of continuing
medical education, continuing education and boaeggration courses for WebMD's professional potialder this new arrangement,
financial consideration will be based entirely eranues generated from the sale of HealthStreamias to WebMD's professional portal
customers.

We have acquired the following companies since 18B6f which were accounted for using the purchas¢hod of accounting:

SilverPlatter Education, Inc. On July 23, 1999, @®npany acquired substantially all of the assk&ilverPlatter Education, Inc., a Boston-
based company that provided CD-ROM and Interneédasntinuing medical education programs to phgegi for $0.8 million in cash and
49,202 shares of the Company's common stock, adssumption of certain liabilities. The result®pérations are included in the
Company's financial statements from July 23, 199%@ SilverPlatter Education business generategioreesales, subscription revenues and
training service revenues.

KnowledgeReview, LLC. On January 3, 2000, the Camycquired substantially all of the assets of KienlgeReview, LLC (d/b/a
"CMECourses.com") for $0.3 million in cash and #B83hares of the Company's common stock. KnowleegeR owned and operated an
Internet Web page that provided a search engineHg&drch.com) that helped physicians locate comtinoiedical education by specialty
facilitated online registration for such courseBe TTMECourses.com business generates one-timeasd&sROM products and generates
traffic for our online courseware sales.

Quick Study, Inc. On January 11, 2000, the Compampired substantially all of the assets and litidxl of Quick Study, Inc. ("Quick
Study") for $0.1 million in cash and 61,397 shayethe Company's common stock. In addition, the gany issued 6,669 additional share
common stock based on post acquisition events.k@&tiedy published CD-ROM and network-based prodigetthe healthcare industry.

m3 the Healthcare Learning Company. On Januarg@®), the Company acquired substantially all ofabsets and liabilities of Multimedia
Marketing, Inc. d/b/a m3 the Healthcare Learningnpany ("m3") for $0.6 million in cash and 818,03iaes of the Company's common
stock. m3 provided interactive, multimedia eduaamd training solutions to hospitals and otheitheare organizations. The m3 business
generates installed product and ASP revenues.

EMINet, Inc. On January 28, 2000, the Company aegusubstantially all of the assets of Emergencyibiee Internetwork, Inc. d/b/a
EMInet for $0.6 million in cash and 269,902 shastthe Company's common stock. In addition, the Gany issued 2,170 additional shares
of common stock based on post acquisition eve8né&t sold approved online medical education conteemergency medical services
personnel. The EMInet business generates reveplaged to sales of subscription products.

Education Design Inc. On July 1, 2000, the Compasguired substantially all of the assets of Edocaiiesign, Inc. ("EDI") for $3.0 million
in cash and 184,421 shares of the Company's corstook. In addition, approximately $300,000 of casl 31,711 shares of the Company's
common stock was provided to the employees of Blllhject to certain restricted stock award agreesn&id| provided services for live
educational events that are supported by the miedikwéce industry. The EDI business generates edevtlopment and registration revent

SynQuest Technologies, Inc. On September 18, 2860Company acquired substantially all of the assEBynQuest Technologies, Inc.
("SynQuest") for 787,087 shares of the Companysmon stock and assumption of certain debt and ditifglities, $2.3 million of which
were repaid in connection with the purchase traimacSynQuest provided online training and edwratd hospitals and healthcare
organizations. The SynQuest business generatedl@asproduct and ASP revenues.

As a result of the acquisitions, we have recordmatigvill of $17.3 million and $6.6 million of othaicquisition intangibles at December 31,
2000. Goodwill and intangibles, net of accumulaetbrtization, represented 6.5% and 25.6% of tase® and 8.0% and 29.1% of total
shareholders' equity at December 31, 1999 and 2880ectively. Our weighted average amortizatiamopds 3.5 years.

We expect to continue to transition m3 and SynQaestomers from existing platforms to the ASP mpdet therefore expect that revenues
will remain comparable for the annual maintenamas fwith increases related to sales of additiomatent and courseware.

During January 2001, the Company acquired substfnéll of the assets of de'MEDICI Systems, a bess unit of Lippincott, Williams &
Wilkins for approximately $360,000 in cash and 28D, shares of the Company's common stock. The sitiqniadds over 200 hospital
customers. This business generates ongoing maimteraand support revenues.

To date, we have incurred substantial costs toldpwaur technologies, create, license and acquireontent, build brand awareness, dev
our infrastructure and expand our business, and fiavto achieve significant revenues. As a resdthave incurred operating losses in each
fiscal quarter since 1994. We expect operatingelossid negative cash flow to continue through 2881ye continue to expand our business.
These costs could have a material adverse effestinfuture financial condition or operating resulVe believe that period-to-period
comparisons of our financial results are not near@lgsmeaningful, and you should not rely upon thasman indication of our future
performance.

15



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
REVENUES AND EXPENSE COMPONENTS
The following descriptions of the components ofenrewes and expenses apply to the comparison ofsedldperations.

Revenues. Revenues currently consist of the pavisf services through our ASP product, the licegsif the Company's installed learning
management systems, maintenance and support reagent subscriptions, content and coursewarelafgment, Web cast events, event
development and registration services, Web siteldement, professional and technical consultingises, online products, sale of CD-
ROM's and training services.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues consists ptin@Ersalaries and employee benefits, materiald, dapreciation associated with the
development of interactive media projects as weloyalties paid to content providers and distidrupartners based on a percentage of
revenues.

Product Development. Product development expermesiat primarily of salaries and employee benedienreciation, third-party content
acquisition costs, costs associated with the dewedmt of content and expenditures associated watintaining, developing and operating
Web sites and training delivery and administrapitatform.

Selling, General and Administrative. General anchiadstrative expenses consist primarily of saladrd employee benefits, facility costs,
depreciation, amortization of intangibles, feesgmfessional services and royalties paid to camteoviders that are of a fixed nature. Sales
and marketing expenses consist primarily of sadaaied employee benefits, bonuses, advertising, @ions and related marketing costs.

Other Income/Expense. The primary component ofratkpense is interest expense related to debts livam related parties and capital
leases. The primary component of other incometéést income related to interest earned on casi, equivalents and investments.

1998 COMPARED TO 1999

Revenues. Revenues increased $852,000, or 49.6& ajpproximately $1.7 million for 1998 to approxtelst $2.6 million for 1999. The
increase in revenues was due to increased salesah@ting of our installed software product andtimedia development services as well
as increased development and content productimitesr During 1999, 48.9% of revenues related telipment services, 24.8% related to
installed software licensing fees and related seryi26.3% related to other transactions and ptadles. In 1998, 76.1% of revenues related
to development services and 23.9% related to Iestabftware licensing fees and related services.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues increased appately $1.0 million, or 100.4%, from approximaté&l$.0 million for 1998 to
approximately $2.1 million for 1999. The increasasvprimarily attributable to increased volume dofihess, including approximately
$800,000 of increases in salaries, labor and itlaémefits. As a percentage of revenues, costvehiees increased from 61.6% for 1998 to
82.5% for 1999. This increase as a percentagevehues resulted from an increase of approximat@lgeBvice and production personnel
during the year, 11 of which were added in conoactiith the acquisition of SilverPlatter.

Product Development. Product development expemsesased approximately $1.6 million, or 359.5%nfi$443,000 for, 1998 to
approximately $2.0 million for 1999. This increasgroduct development expenses was due to appadeiyn$748,000 in distribution
expenses related to a warrant granted to GE Me8igstems in connection with a continuing educagind training content distribution
agreement, an increase of approximately $530,08€eckto salaries, labor and related benefits foinarease in our production staff and
approximately $195,000 of royalty expense undetraats with content and distribution partners. Azeecentage of revenues, product
development expenses increased from 25.8% for 9%98.3% for 1999. The increase as a percentagevefiues was due to significant
upfront product development expenses incurred fément our online services, including salaries eamgloyee benefits associated with
increased content conversion and development gradties due to content and distribution partners.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, gett@nd administrative expenses increased approgiynd1 .5 million, or 101.2%, from
approximately $1.5 million for 1998 to approximat&3.0 million for 1999. As a percentage of revenselling, general and administrative
expenses increased from 86.0% for 1998 to 115.7%989. The increase was primarily due to incregmadonnel and related benefits costs
of approximately $500,000 associated with new eygss, an increase of approximately $228,000 inréigireg, promotional and marketing
expenditures, an increase of approximately $131i0@0ofessional service fees, an increase of fBrelated to amortization of intangible
assets, an increase of approximately $168,00@&ietiexpenses, and facility and depreciation exgenapproximately $96,000.

Other Income/Expense. Other expense decreasedd®022r 36.9%, from $331,000 for 1998 to $209,0001P99. The decrease was
primarily due to a conversion by a related partgbroximately $1.6 million of indebtedness intargs of common stock and series B
convertible preferred stock, which was partiallfsef by an increase in interest expense on cdpéaés. In addition, interest and other inc
increased from $3,000 for 1998 to $312,000 for 1@R@ to a higher average net cash and cash eguigdlalance as a result of our issuance
of preferred stock.

Net Loss. Net loss increased approximately $2.89anjlor 180.4%, from approximately $1.6 millionrfb998 to approximately $4.5 millic
for 1999 due to the factors described abi



1999 COMPARED TO 2000

Revenues. Revenues increased approximately $7idmibr 275.9%, from approximately $2.6 millionrfb999 to approximately $9.7

million for 2000. The increase in revenues washattable to approximately $6.1 million of revenyesnarily related to the acquisition of n
EDI, SynQuest and EMInet. The remainder of theaase, approximately $1.0 million, related to rexenfiom ASP services and Web cast
events. During 2000, 13.9% of revenues relatectt@ldpment services, 44.1% related to our instdlathing management system licensing
fees and related services, 18.0 % related to \remteservices, 14.0% related to other transactimasproduct sales (including sponsorships),
5.6% related to Web cast
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events, and 4.4% related to ASP services. Duriff9,188.9% of revenues related to development sesyR6.3% related to other transactions
and product sales and 24.8% related to T.NAV licenfees and related services. Revenues for ASkcserin 2000 are net of approximately
$1.0 million of warrant expense related to the H&fangement.

Cost of Revenues. Cost of revenues increased appately $2.0 million, or 95.6%, from approximatég.1 million for 1999 to

approximately $4.1 million for 2000. The increasasvprimarily attributable to increased volume ddibass, including approximately $1.2
million from direct costs related to the revenumniracquisitions and $800,000 of increases in ssalabor, related benefits, training and
facilities for such personnel. As a percentagesgénues, cost of revenues decreased from 82.5%98% to 43.0% for 2000. This decrease as
a percentage of revenues resulted from lower foasds as a percentage of revenues related to guired businesses and new ASP and Web
cast services in 2000.

Product Development. Product development expensesadsed approximately $3.6 million, or 176.8%nfrapproximately $2.0 million for
1999 to approximately $5.6 million for 2000. Thieiease in product development expenses was dagptoximately $3.0 million related to
additional personnel resulting from the acquiredibesses, an increase of approximately $800,0@6rkto contract personnel and direct
expenses of our development personnel, as wep@a®ximately $400,000 related to facilities for nparsonnel. These increases were offset
by a decrease of approximately $750,000 relatedhtoant expense in 1999 that did not recur in 2@@0a percentage of revenues, product
development expenses decreased from 79.3% fort®d®.4% for 2000. The decrease as a percentage@fiues was due to growth in
revenues, despite continued growth in product dgreknt. We anticipate continued growth in prodestedlopment expenses in future
periods due to salaries and employee benefits mtsdavith increased development efforts. Suchrifimay be somewhat mitigated by
capitalization of new product developments if thenipany modifies its ASP software and Web sitesamid develops new ASP software
applications and Web sites.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, geth@nd administrative expenses increased approgiyn®19.5 million, or 658.6%, from
approximately $3.0 million for 1999 to approximat&22.5 million for 2000. As a percentage of revesg)selling, general and administrative
expenses increased from 115.7% for 1999 to 233d9d00. General and administrative expenses isetehy approximately $8.7 million
from approximately $1.5 million for 1999 to approwtely $10.2 million for 2000. The increase was tuapproximately $3.2 million of
fixed royalties, primarily related to our agreemesith WebMD, approximately $3.0 million relateditwreased personnel, benefits and travel
associated with new employees, approximately $illiomrelated to additional offices and relateceogtional expenses and an increase of
approximately $600,000 related to professional feesthe costs of being a public company. The exidit personnel relate to the acquired
businesses as well as personnel to provide thasimércture required by the growth experienced du2®00. While we expect increases in
general and administrative expenses during 200onsot expect significant growth in personnel dgr2001. In addition, the termination of
the previous arrangement with WebMD will lead teeduction of approximately $3.0 million in fixedyaties during 2001 when comparec
2000.

Sales and marketing expenses, including persomséd,dncreased approximately $4.8 million, frorprapimately $1.0 million for 1999 to
approximately $5.8 million for 2000. Sales and nedirig expenses increased by approximately $2.8omiielated to additional sales and
marketing personnel, primarily in connection witle acquisitions of m3 and SynQuest. The remaimiogease of approximately $2.0 million
related primarily to increased advertising, din@etil, attendance at trade shows and travel retadasts. We expect to incur additional sales
and marketing expenses as we hire additional salésnarketing personnel to support our planned trow

Depreciation and amortization expenses increaseppyoximately $6.1 million from $452,000 for 19@Gapproximately $6.6 million for
2000. Of the increase, approximately $5.4 millielfated to the current year amortization of the &itijons completed in 2000 as well as the
full year impact of the acquisition of SilverPlatt&he remaining $700,000 related to increaseepretiation attributable to the acquisitions
and fixed asset additions in both 1999 and 2000.

Other Income/Expense. Other income increased appately $2.2 million, or 705.2%, from $312,000 899 to approximately $2.5 million
for 2000. The increase was primarily due to inteiresome related to the investment of the IPO pedse Other expense decreased by $8:
from $209,000 for 1999 to $126,000 for 2000. Therease relates to the repayment and conversiohaitatanding indebtedness, other tl
capital leases, in connection with the Companyt&lrpublic offering ("IPO").

Net Loss. Net loss increased approximately $151Bomj or 355.2%, from approximately $4.5 millioarf1999 to approximately $20
million for 2000 due to the factors described above
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SELECTED QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

The following tables set forth selected statemémiperations data for the eight quarters ended Dbee 31, 1999 and December 31, 2000
both in absolute dollars and as a percentage af®tenues. The information for each quarter lastprepared on substantially the same
basis as the audited statements included in otimés pf this report and, in our opinion, includésadjustments, consisting of only normal
recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair presiemt of the results of operations for these peridtbu should read this information in
conjunction with HealthStream's Consolidated Fifar8tatements and related notes thereto inclubeavere in this report. The operating
results for any quarter are not necessarily intieadf the results to be expected in the future.

QUARTER ENDED

MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31,
1999 1999 1999 1999
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA )
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenues $ 653 $ 459 $ 652 $ 804
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 294 408 371 1,046
Product development 286 455 509 787
Selling, general and administrative expenses 359 685 1,083 845
Total operating costs and expenses 939 1,548 1,963 2,678
Loss from operations (286) (1,089) (1,3112) (1,874)
Other income (expense) (92) (11) 50 157
Net loss $ (378) $(1,100) $(1,261) $(1,717)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $(0.12) $(0.31) $(0.31) $(0.41)
Weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding - basic and diluted 3,256 3,590 4,021 4,158

QUARTER ENDED

MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31,
2000 2000 2000 2000
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA )
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenues $ 1,445 $2,201 $2,729 $ 3,277
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 758 1,040 1,034 1,314
Product development 1,190 1,238 1,617 1,594
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,180 5,931 6,408 7,022
Total operating costs and expenses 5,128 8,209 9,059 9,930
Loss from operations (3,683) (6,008) (6,330) (6,653)
Other income (expense) 178 452 1,064 695
Net loss $(3,505) $(5,556) $(5,266) $(5,958)
Net loss per share - basic and diluted $(0.74) $(0.30) $(0.27) $ (0.30)
Weighted average shares of common stock
outstanding - basic and diluted 4,743 18,595 19,640 20,165
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

QUARTER ENDED

MARCH 31,
1999

JUNE 30,

1999

SEPTEMBER 30,

1999

(% OF REVENUES)

1999

Revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 45.0 88.9 56.9 130.0
Product development 43.8 99.1 78.1 97.9
Selling, general and administrative expenses 55.0 149.2 166.1 105.2
Total operating costs and expenses 143.8 337.2 301.1 333.1
Loss from operations (43.8) (237.2) (201.1) (233.1)
Other income (expense) (14.1) (2.6) 7 195
Net loss (57.9) (239.8) (193.4) (213.6)
QUARTER ENDED
MARCH 31, JUNE 30, SEPTEMBER 30, DECEMBER 31
2000 2000 2000 2000
(% OF REVENUES)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Revenues 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 52.5 47.2 37.9 40.1
Product development 82.4 56.2 59.3 48.6
Selling, general and administrative expenses 220.0 269.5 234.8 214.3
Total operating costs and expenses 354.9 3729 332.0 303.0
Loss from operations (254.9) (272.9) (232.0) (203.0)
Other income (expense) 12.4 20.5 39.0 21.2
Net loss (242.5) (252.4) (193.0) (181.8)

FACTORS AFFECTING QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS

As discussed above, during July 1999, we acquiiledr®latter. We acquired m3, EMInet, KnowledgeRswviand Quick Study during
January 2000. We acquired EDI effective July 1,280d SynQuest on September 18, 2000. As a refdhiése acquisitions, the quarterly
results presented above are not comparable onrtegiaquarter basis. In addition, revenues frostalled learning management systems
may be subject to fluctuations because purchastesé licenses typically are included in custoheagital expenditure budgets. Further,
sales of products and services to pharmaceutichiradical device companies can be subject to sebfmtors as a result of drug and
product introductions and budget cycles for suahganies.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Since our inception, we have financed our operatlargely through proceeds from the IPO, private@ments of equity securities, loans
from related parties and, to a lesser extent, frewenues generated from the sale of our productseanvices.

Net cash used in operating activities was approteim&14.6 million in 2000. Cash used in operatiatjvities was attributable to funding r
operating losses and increases in accounts redejyabpaid expenses and other assets, which vagtially offset by increases in accrued
liabilities and depreciation, amortization and othen-cash expenses. Net cash used in investingtiest was approximately $30.5 million in
2000. Cash used in investing activities was prilmwdoir the purchase of investments, property angdpmgent and the acquisitions discussed
above. Cash provided by financing activities wasragimately $51.2 million in 2000. Cash providedfmancing activities related primarily
to the IPO and a private placement of common steekof offering costs and repayment of outstandidgbtedness. As of December 31,
2000, our primary source of liquidity was approxteta $27.3 million of cash and short-term investiseklVe have no bank credit facility or
other indebtedness other than capital lease oldigat

As of February 28, 2001, we had cash and short irevestments of approximately $28.3 million, whietflected the results of operations, the
closing of the acquisition of de'MEDICI Systemss tiepurchase of shares of our common stock fromMZeBorporation, and the movemt
of certain investments from long-term to short-teBae Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statésne

We believe that the net proceeds from the IPO hagteceding private offerings will be sufficieatrheet anticipated cash needs for working
capital, capital expenditures and acquisitionsatdeast the next 12 months. Our growth strategy @micludes acquiring companies t
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complement our products and services. We anticiipatethese acquisitions, if any, will be effectebugh a combination of stock and cash
consideration. Failure to generate sufficient désh from operations or raise additional capitalemtrequired during or following that period
in sufficient amounts and on terms acceptable tooudd harm our business, results of operationsfiaadcial condition.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In connection with our February 2000 agreement Wi@A, HCA will pay us minimum revenues of $12.0 lioih over the four-year term of
the agreement. While we expect costs to increasegl001 as we grow our business, we expect tostscrease as a percentage of
revenues. We expect that our capital expensedwiipproximately $3.0 to $5.0 million in 2001.

Our strategic alliances have typically providedgayments to distribution, content and developnpantners based on revenues, and we
expect to continue similar arrangements in ther&utAs a result, the Company's commitments fordfigayments include approximately
$302,000 in 2001, all of which is nonrefundable. 8¥& have variable commitments of approximate Q00 related to an agreement ul
which another company has agreed to provide codirglopment services for us.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

During 1998, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBqa-FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accougttandard ("SFAS") No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgigtivities," as amended during 2000 by SFAS No.,13&counting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," whirequires companies to recognize all derivatagesither assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet and measure such instruments &hfaé. The Company is required to adopt the promsiof SFAS No. 133 beginning Jant
1, 2001. The Company had no derivative instrumeduatsg 1999 or 2000. Adoption of this statement mdt currently have any impact on
the consolidated financial statements or relatsdlds$ures.

On March 16, 2000, the Emerging Issues Task FSEIEE") reached a consensus on Issue No. 00-2 "ating for Web Site Development
Costs." The consensus requires that certain dewelopcosts related to Web sites applications b#ateed. The consensus was effective
prospectively for all costs incurred for quarteegiimning after June 30, 2000. Effective July 1,288 Company began accounting for Web
site development costs in accordance with EITFd$d$0. 00-2. The Company did not capitalize any \8febdevelopment costs during 2000
since the costs incurred with respect to its ASBvsoe and Web sites were incurred prior to June2800 or were related to planning or
operation of such software and sites.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE'S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risk from changes inaesteates. We do not have any foreign currencyaxgh rate risk or commaodity price risk.
As of December 31, 2000, we had no outstandingbitedimess other than approximately $505,000 of aldpiase arrangements. Accordingly,
the Company is not exposed to significant interats market risk. The Company is exposed to maigletwvith respect to its cash and
investment balances. At December 31, 2000, the @agnpad cash and investments totaling approxim&#ly0 million. At this investment
level, a hypothetical 10% decrease in interessrateuld decrease interest income and increaseetiiess on an annualized basis by
approximately $410,000.

The Company manages its investment risk by invgstircorporate debt securities, foreign corporatet édnd secured corporate debt
securities with minimum acceptable credit ratirfgs:. certificates of deposit and corporate obligaiaatings must be A2/A or better; A1/P1
or better for commercial paper; A2/A or better faxable or tax advantaged auction rate securitidsfaA or better for tax free auction rate
securities. The Company also requires that allr#gesmust mature within 24 months from the oradisettlement date, the average portfolio
shall not exceed 18 months, and the greater of &0$6.0 million shall mature within 90 days. Furthtae Company's investment policy also
limits concentration exposure and other potenisil areas.

The above market risk discussion and the estimetgalints presented are forward-looking statememsaoket risk assuming the occurrence
of certain adverse market conditions. Actual resintthe future may differ materially from thos@jacted as a result of actual developments
in the market.
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REPORT OF ERNST AND YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Mé&ifeam, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of HealthStream, Inc. as of Decembet@9 and 2000, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, sharehoketgugty (deficit) and cash flows for each of these years in the period ended December
31, 2000. These financial statements are the regiibty of the Company's management. Our respdlitsilis to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United Stétesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits providesaonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢consolidated financial position of
HealthStream, Inc. at December 31, 1999 and 2G@Dtlee consolidated results of its operations &ddsh flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2000, in confgrmith accounting principles generally acceptethim United States.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Nashvi |l e, Tennessee
February 10, 2001, except for
Note 12, as to which the date
is February 23, 2001
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......................
Short term investments..........cccccveeeee....
Restricted cash...............
Interest receivable..............ccccvvvinnnns
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtf
of $37,000 in 1999 and $198,000 in 2000......
Accounts receivable - unbilled..................
Prepaid development fees.........cccccceeen.n.

Other prepaid expenses and other current assets.

Total current assets........c.ccvveeeennnes
Property and equipment:
Furniture and fixtures...........c.cccceveene
Equipment............cccee.
Fixed assets in progress..........cccceveuveee.
Leasehold improvements.........cccccceeeeennnn.

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .

Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
of $213,000 in 1999 and $5,847,000 in 2000......

Investments............occeeeviiiiienciiinn,

Other assets

Total asSetS.........ccceevevvvvcciiiiiiiieneennn.

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...........ccccccooiiiiinn
Accrued liabilities...
Accrued royalties.........
Registration liabilities...
Deferred revenue...........cccceeeviieeeenne
Notes payable - related party...................
Current portion of long-term debt - related part
Current portion of capital lease obligations....

Total current liabilities.................
Capital lease obligations, less current portion....
Commitments and contingencies

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,
1999

.......................... 14,458,580

445,172
1,109,015

369,346
1,923,533
.......................... (589,632)

1,333,901

.......................... 1,134,673
86,063
441,488

.......................... $ 443,455
448,727

791,424
1,293,000
12,892
89,881
.......................... 3,079,379
.......................... 185,801

DECEMBER 31,
2000

$ 19,830,572
7,451,450
794,342
578,534

3,957,149
49,600
695,427
1,297,526

34,654,600

883,660
3,893,720
117,000
885,630
5,780,010
(1,505,004)

4,275,006

18,024,526
12,889,674
607,770

$ 1,150,996
1,719,906
1,500,000

794,342
2,764,235

8,218,310
216,072



Shareholders' equity:

Common stock, no par value, 20,000,000 and 75,00

authorized at December 31, 1999 and 2000, res

4,165,461 shares and 21,242,312 shares issued

December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively.....
Preferred stock, no par value, 5,000,000 and 10,
at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock; 76,000
issued and outstanding....................

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock; 1,228,8
issued and outstanding....................

Series C Convertible Preferred Stock; 627,406
issued and outstanding

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)...

Accumulated deficit

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

See accompanying notes.

DECEMBER 31,

1999
0,000 shares
pectively;
and outstanding at
............................. 4,008,991

000,000 shares authorized

and 0 shares
............................. 760,000

............................. 12,138,000
............................. 6,274,060

............................. (41,690)
............................. (8,949,836)
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DECEMBER 31,
2000

91,221,775

30,556
(29,235,137)



HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1999 2000
Revenues, net of warrant expense of $991,693 in 200 0 $ 1,716,094 $ 2,567,868 $ 9,651,775
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of revenues 1,057,453 2,119,127 4,145,943
Product development 443,336 2,037,272 5,639,422
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,476,639 2,971,408 22,540,172
Total operating costs and expenses 2,977,428 7,127,807 32,325,537
Loss from operations (1,261,334) (4,559,939) ( 22,673,762)
Other income (expense):
Interest and other income 2,634 312,324 2,514,813
Interest expense - related parties (328,412) (193,059) (34,255)
Interest expense (2,070) (12,041) (92,097)
Other expense (318) (3,689) -
(328,166) 103,535 2,388,461
Net loss $(1,589,500) $(4,456,404) $( 20,285,301)
Net loss per share:
Basic $ (0.49) $ (119 $ (1.29)
Diluted $ (0.49) $ (1.19) $ (1.29)
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding :
Basic 3,256,307 3,756,556 15,785,946
Diluted 3,256,307 3,756,556 15,785,946

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEF ICIT)

COMMON
SHARES
Balance at
December 31, 1997 ........... 3,256,307
Net 0SS ...coovvvviiviiiennn, -

Issuance of Preferred Stock ... -
Issuance of stock options
for services ....

Balance at

December 31, 1998 ...........
Net loss ...
Unrealized loss on

investment, net of tax ...... --
Comprehensive loss ............. -
Issuance of Preferred Stock ... -
Issuance of common stock ....... 855,327
Issuance of common stock

in acquisition .............. 49,202
Issuance of common stock

options to advisory

boards ........cccceevieene --
Issuance of common stock

for services ................ 4,625
Issuance of warrant ............ --

3,256,307

Balance at

December 31,1999 ...........
Net oSS .....cocvvevieeinen, --
Unrealized gain on

investment, net of tax ...... -
Comprehensive

income (I0SS) ............... --
Issuance of common

stock in acquisitions ....... 2,209,953
Exercise of stock options ...... 801,997
Issuance of common stock in

initial public offering .....
Issuance of common stock in

private offering ............
Payment of expenses of

initial public offering ..... --
Conversion of Preferred Stock

into common stock in

connection with initial

public offering ............
Conversion of related party

notes payable into common

stock in connection with

initial public offering ..... 553,711
Repurchase of common stock in

connection with the

initial public offering ..... (6,074)
Recognition of warrant

EXPENSE ....ocvvrvereienns -
Issuance of stock options

for services ................ --

5,275,000

1,111,111

7,131,153

Balance at
December 31, 2000 .

SERIES A
CONVERTIBLE
STOCK PREFERRED STOCK
AMOUNT SHARES AMOUNT

$ 1,668,166 - $ -
- 41,000 410,000

130,332 - -

1,798,498 41,000 410,000

- 35,000 350,000
1,231,590 - -

200,000 -- --

11,760 -- --

18,800 -- --
748,343 -- --

4,008,991 76,000 760,000

12,949,437 - -
600,786 - -

44,151,750 - -
10,000,000 - -

(1,977,629) - -

19,172,060  (76,000)  (760,000)

1,293,000 - -

(14,213) - -
991,693 - -

45,900 - -

$91,221,775 - % -

1

a
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SERIES B
CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED STOCK

SHARES  AMOUNT
-t
228,801 12,138,000
228,801)  (12,138,000)
.




SERIES C

CONVERTIBLE ACCUMULATE D
PR EFERRED STOCK ACCUMU- OTHER COMP RE- TOTAL
------------------------- LATED HENSIVE INC OME SHAREHOLDERS
SHARE S AMOUNT DEFICIT (LOSS) EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Balance at December 31, 1997 ........... - % - $(2,903932) $ -- $ (1,235,766)
NEet 0SS ..ocovveeriiiieiiieeei - - (1,589,500) - (1,589,500)
Issuance of Preferred Stock ............ - - - - 410,000
Issuance of stock options

for services ......ccccceeeeeeeenn - - - - 130,332
Balance at December 31, 1998 ........... - - (4,493,432) - (2,284,934)
NEet 0SS ..ocovveeriiieiieeiie - - (4,456,404) - (4,456,404)
Unrealized loss on

investment, net of tax .............. - - - (41,690 ) (41,690)
Comprehensive 10SS ............cc..... - - - - (4,498,094)
Issuance of Preferred Stock ... 627,4 06 6,274,060 - - 18,762,060
Issuance of common stock ............... - - - - 1,231,590
Issuance of common stock

in acquisition ...........cceceee.ne - - - - 200,000
Issuance of common stock options to

advisory boards ..............c..... - - - - 11,760
Issuance of common stock

for Services .......ccccoeeeeeneen. - - - - 18,800
Issuance of warrant .................... - - - - 748,343

Balance at December 31, 1999 ...........
Net loss
Unrealized gai

06 6,274,060

(8,949,836) (41,690

(20,285,301) -

) 14,189,525
(20,285,301)

investment, net of tax .............. - - - 72,246 72,246
Comprehensive income (losS) ............ - - - - (20,213,055)
Issuance of common stock

in acquisitions ...........c..cee... - - - - 12,949,437
Exercise of stock options .............. - - - - 600,786
Issuance of common stock in

initial public offering ............. - - - - 44,151,750
Issuance of common stock in

private offering .................... - - - - 10,000,000
Payment of expenses of

initial public offering ............. - - - - (1,977,629)
Conversion of Preferred Stock

into common stock in connection

with initial public offering ........ (627,4 06) (6,274,060) - -- --
Conversion of related party

notes payable into common

stock in connection with

initial public offering ............. - - - - 1,293,000
Repurchase of common stock in

connection with the

initial public offering ............. - - - - (14,213)
Recognition of warrant expense ......... - - - - 991,693
Issuance of stock options

for Services .......cocceeeeeneenn. - - - - 45,900

- 8 - $(29,235,137) $30,556 $ 62,017,194

See accompanying notes.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net 0SS .....ooiieiiiiiicc e
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization ...........
Gain on sale of investment .....
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Loss on disposal of assets .....
Noncash warrant expense ......
Noncash compensation expense ................
Noncash legal expense .............
Noncash product development expense .........
Amortization of content fees ................
Amortization of fixed royalties .............
Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Unbilled receivables ...
Restricted cash .......
Interest receivable ..... .
Prepaid development fees .................
Other prepaid expenses and other current a
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued royalties
Registration liabilities .
Deferred revenue

Net cash used in operating activities ..
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of companies, net of cash acquired ....
Proceeds from sale of investment .
Purchase of investments .................
Purchase of property and equipment ................

Net cash used in investing activities ..
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of unde

Costs of issuing common stock .............cc.....
Repayment of note payable ...............cccceee
Proceeds from notes payable - related party .......
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock .........
Proceeds from exercise of stock options ...........
Payments on long-term debt - related party ........
Repurchase of stock in connection with initial publ
Payments on capital lease obligations .............

Net cash provided by financing activitie

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..........

FOR THE YEAR EN DED DECEMBER 31,

99 2000
................. $(1,589,500) $ (4, 456,404)  $(20,285,301)
in
132,267 239,248 920,504
14,648 213,032 5,634,000
- - (94,438)
36,500 500 85,000
3,727 3,689 -
- - 991,693
128,232 30,560 45,900
2,100 - -
- 748,343 -
- - 97,474
- - 129,350
(232,593) (51,239) (1,452,523)
54,150 (8,056) (30,723)
- - (141,082)
- - (578,534)
- - (792,901)
(4,409) ( 225,442) (832,561)
- ( 440,011) 270,795
71,942 324,353 (319,167)
46,676 236,561 554,546
-- -- 1,500,000
-- -- 139,492
87,005 126,714 (416,199)
................. (1,249,255) 3, 258,152) (14,574,675)
- ( 780,206) (6,767,810)
-- -- 122,271
- ( 127,753) (20,734,425)
(208,577) ( 639,724) (3,094,665)
................. (208,577) (1, 547,683) (30,474,629)
rwriting discount - - 54,151,750
................. - - (1,977,629)
- - (1,180,000)
1,040,000 18,000 -
410,000 18, 202,060 -
- 231,590 600,786
(20,931) (23,585) (132,559)
- - (14,213)
(4,779) (40,909) (200,403)
S et 1,424,290 18, 387,156 51,247,732
S s (33,542) 13, 581,321 6,198,428
................. 84,365 50,823 13,632,144
................. $ 50,823 $ 13, 632,144 $ 19,830,572
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SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Interest paid .........cccovvevvireeniiiiiiens

Capital lease obligations incurred ...............
Preferred stock converted into common stock

Notes payable - related parties converted into comm

Notes payable - related parties converted into pref

Issuance of common stock in connection with acquisi
Issuance of common stock in exchange for profession

Issuance of common stock to advisory boards

Effects of acquisitions:

Estimated fair value of assets acquired ..
Purchase price in excess of net assets acq
Estimated fair value of liabilities assume
Stock issued .........cccocceiiine

Cash paid ........cceevveiiieeiiees
Less cash acquired ...........cccccoeene

Net cash paid for acquisitions ...........

See accompanying notes.

FOR THE YEAR EN

1998 199
................. $ 320,320 $ 22
$ 34,394 $ 28
................. $ - $
on stock ........ $ - $ 1,00
erred stock ..... $ - $ 56
tion of companies $ - $ 20
al services ..... $ - $ 1
................. $ - $ 1
................. $ - $ 9
-- 1,37
- (49
- (20
""" - 78
................. s -~ $78
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5,074 $ 126,352

6,976 $ 343,549

- $ 19,172,060

0,000 $ 1,293,000

0,000 $ --

0,000 $12,949,437

8,800 $ 45,900

1,760 $ --

5,713 $ 3,608,502

4,619 22,442,980

0,126) (6,173,054)

0,000) (12,949,437)

0,206 6,928,991
- (161,181)

0,206 $ 6,767,810




HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
REPORTING ENTITY

HealthStream, Inc. ("the Company") was incorporatet®90 and is based in Nashville, Tennessee Cidmpany provides Web-based
solutions to meet the ongoing training and contigieducation needs of the healthcare community Cldrapany changed its name to
HealthStream, Inc. from NewOrder Media, Inc. ont8ayber 1, 1998. The Company provides an interattairing solution for delivering
and tracking computer based education for the hegdé industry in the United States through appboaservice provider ("ASP") products
and installed learning management products. Thegaomalso provides event development and registratrvices, custom development
services, translation of content into an interacgxperience, and assists in the development ef etfucational activities, provided through
the Internet.

BUSINESS SEGMENT

Through December 31, 2000, the Company's reverasgslieen primarily derived from one business segntem sale of education and
training products to the healthcare industry.

The Chief Executive Officer has been identifiedras Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") becahsehas final authority over
resource allocation decisions and performance sissg. The CODM does not receive discrete finanmefarmation about any individual
components. During 2001, the Company expects tmlprgducing discrete financial information for giees provided to healthcare
organizations or services to pharmaceutical andeakdevice companies.

RECOGNITION OF REVENUE

Revenues are derived from the provision of servicesugh our ASP product, the license of the Cormg[sainstalled learning management
systems, maintenance and support services, caubatriptions, custom content development, Webesasits, live event registration,
development and coordination services, Web siteldpment, professional and technical consultingises, online products and
sponsorships, training services and the sale oRTDA's. The Company has entered into sponsorshgeawgnts that involve integration with
services and provide for varied sources of reveaudke Company over the terms of the agreementorime cases revenues derived from
electronic commerce transactions are shared bettheasther entity and the Company, in accordante thie term of the arrangement, as
realized. The provision of services via the Intétregan in March 1999 and increased in 2000 a€timepany began providing ASP services.

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance watki8ent of Position 97-2, "Software Revenue Reitiogri ("SOP 97-2"), SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101, "Revenue Recognitiamt EITF 99-19 "Reporting Revenue Gross Versus' ISP 97-2 provides specific

industry guidance and stipulates that revenue r@zed from software arrangements is to be alloctteghch element of the arrangement
based on the relative fair values of the eleme&hish elements include software products, post aohtustomer support, installation, and
training. The determination of fair value is basedobjective evidence that is specific to the ventfesuch evidence of fair value for each
element of the arrangement does not exist, allmesdrom the arrangement is deferred until sucle tinat the evidence of fair value does
exist or until all elements of the arrangementdaivered.

Revenues derived from the provision of servicesugh our ASP product are deferred and recognizatblgaover the term of the service
agreement. Training revenues are recognized ugoodimpletion of training. Revenues derived fromlibense of installed learning
management systems are recognized upon shipmergtaliation of the software. Revenues derived ftbmsale of products requiring
significant modification or customization are reded based on the percentage of completion methnd labor hours. Revenues from
subscriptions are deferred and recognized rataliy ihe term of the subscription. Software suppad maintenance revenues are recognizec
ratably over the term of the related agreementnS@ship revenues are recognized either basedoeisian of courseware or over the
sponsorship period, depending on the scope ofcaryirovided. The Company recognizes revenue fr@ntelevelopment services based on
the percentage of completion method using labordidRegistration services are recognized upon cetiopl of the related event. All other
revenues are recognized as the related servicgedmgrmed or products are delivered.

The Company also receives a percentage of itdeesakvenue from the sale of certain installeftixsare products. The Company recognizes
a percentage of revenue from resellers upon natifio from the reseller that a sale has occurred.

Revenues provided under a service agreement ttlatied the grant of a warrant to HCAformation Technology & Services, Inc., forme
Columbia Information Services, an affiliate of HEAhe Healthcare Company, formerly Columbia/HCAll@xdively referred to herein as
"HCA") are recognized as services are renderedpfrtbie amortization of the fair value of the reldtvarrant as a reduction of the revenues
proportionately over the term of the four-year agnent. The related amortization will fluctuate lshea the revenues received from this
agreement and will vary as a percentage of revelpassd on the estimated revenues over the coutke afjreement.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION



The consolidated financial statements include tw®ants of the Company and its subsidiaries, alltith are wholly-owned. Significant
inter-company accounts and transactions have Haemated in consolidation.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the amounts reported in the findrst&@ements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimated anch differences could be material to the codat#id financial statements.
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HEALTHSTREAM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (CONTIN UED)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
The Company considers unrestricted, highly liquiestments with initial maturities of less tharetamonths to be cash equivalents.
ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accountsthacamounts charged to bad debt expense werelasdol

ALLOWA NCE
BALANC E AT CHARGED TO CHARGED TO ALLOWANCE
BEGINNI NG OF COSTS AND OTHER BALANCE AT
PERI oD EXPENSES ACCOUNTS WRITE-OFFS END OF PERIOD
Year ended December 31,:

1998 $ - $36,500 $ - $ - $ 36,500

1999 $ 36,5 00 $ 6,250 $ - $5,750 $ 37,000

2000 $37,0 00 $85,000 $ 78,000 $ 2,000 $ 198,000

The amount "charged to other accounts" represkataltowance for doubtful accounts of acquired canigs.
INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale securities are stated at falugawith the unrealized gains and losses, nexqafreported in other comprehensive income.
Realized gains and losses and declines in valugeflitb be other-than-temporary on available-foe-sakurities are included in investment

income. The cost of securities sold is based ospleeific identification method. Interest and deandls on securities classified as available-
for-sale are included in other income.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated on the basissbf Depreciation and amortization are providedhenstraight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives, except for assatder capital leases and leasehold improvemetishvare amortized over the shorter of
estimated useful life or the lease term.

YEARS
Furniture and fixtures 5-10
Equipment 3-5

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets, which represents the excessrohase price over fair value of net tangible asaetuired or goodwill, content, customer
lists, and non-compete agreements, are amortizedstraight-line basis over the expected periodsetbenefited, generally three to five
years, three to five years, two to three yearssindhonths to two years, respectively. In additimtangible assets includes favorable le
rights which represents the difference betweenraohial terms and market rates for obligations ufehese contracts at the date of
acquisition. Favorable lease rights are amortizest the remaining lease term.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets are comprised of licensing fees,inffeosts in 1999, the long term portion of con@eelopment and other long term items.
Licensing and content development fees are amdrbased on the lives of the related agreementseandcreditation lives of the related
content, generally two years.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in alzoore with Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsld'SFAS") No. 121, "Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for lgebived Assets to be Disposed Of," which requitest tompanies consider whether
events or changes in facts and circumstances,ittettmally and externally, may indicate that an @inment of long-lived assets held for use
are present. Management periodically evaluatesdahging value of long-lived assets, including pdp and equipment and intangible assets
and has determined that there were no indicatibimmairment as of December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2886uld there be an impairment in
the future, the Company would recognize the amofitiie impairment based on expected future castsffoom the impaired assets. The ¢
flow estimates that would be used would be basethamagement's best estimates, using appropriatelstaimary assumptions and
projections at the time



ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE-UNBILLED AND DEFERRED REVENUE

Accounts receivable-unbilled represents revenueegbior contracts accounted for on the percenthgeropletion basis for which invoices
have not been generated. Deferred revenue repses@aunts which have been billed or collected niotityet recognized in revenue.

INCOME TAXES

Income taxes have been provided using the liabitigthod in accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounfor Income Taxes." Prior to
October 1, 1998, the Company, with the consertiscghareholders, elected Subchapter S status tivelprovisions of the Internal Revenue
Code. The shareholders of an S Corporation ara& tameheir proportionate share of the Company'ahiexincome in lieu of a corporate

income tax. Accordingly, no provision, benefit,liability for federal income taxes has been incllidte the financial statements for periods
prior to October 1,
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1998. The Subchapter S election was not availasl@énnessee corporate income tax. On October@B, 1Be Company terminated the
Subchapter S election. Effective October 1, 1998 Gompany began providing for federal income taxes

ADVERTISING

The Company expenses the costs of advertisingcasrad. Advertising expense for the years endecebéer 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, was
approximately $2,900, $121,800 and $1,115,000 ecsEly.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Product development costs include the cost toratsr develop and convert content for our instabed ASP products as well as to provide
content via portal partners. The Company capitalthe cost of content developed by third partiesrehthe life expectancy is greater than
year. During 2000, the Company capitalized apprexaty $800,000 related to third party content depelent. Such amounts are include:
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet irajurelevelopment fees. The Company amortizes codmmlopment over the expected
life, which is generally one to two years. Prodietelopment costs incurred to establish the tedgical feasibility of computer software
products that are developed for resale and ASRvardtand Web sites prior to June 30, 2000 are edai@expense as incurred. Effective .
1, 2000 the Company began accounting for Web siteldpment costs in accordance with EITF IssuedQe2 "Accounting for Web Site
Development Costs" that provides guidance on whemapitalize versus expense costs incurred to dpveWeb site. The Company
capitalizes costs incurred between the point cfldisthing technological feasibility and generaéese when such costs are material. As of
December 31, 1999 and 2000, the Company had ntatiapd development costs for computer softwaréwres developed for resale. The
Company did not capitalize any Web site developreests during 2000 since the costs incurred wipeet to its ASP software and Web
sites were incurred prior to June 30, 2000 andsdastrred after June 30, 2000 related to planoimgperation of such software and sites.

NET LOSS PER SHARE

The Company computes net loss per share followFgSSNo. 128, "Earnings Per Share". Under the prongsof SFAS No. 128, basic net
loss per share is computed by dividing the net éosglable to common shareholders for the periotheyweighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Dilait loss per share is computed by dividing thidass for the period by the weighted
average number of common and common equivalenésiutstanding during the period. Common equivalkates, composed of
incremental common shares issuable upon the eravtistock options and warrants, escrowed or mdsttishares, shares subject to vesting
and common shares issuable on assumed conversgries A, B and C convertible preferred stock,imckided in diluted net loss per share
to the extent these shares are dilutive. Commoivalgmt shares are not included in the computatiodiluted net loss per share for the years
ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, becausé&¢lsewould be anti-dilutive.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTO MERS

The Company places its temporary excess cash meess in high quality, short-term money marketrinstents. At times, such investments
may be in excess of the FDIC insurance limits.

The Company sells its systems and services towaigompanies in the healthcare industry. The Cogparforms ongoing credit evaluatic
of its customers' financial condition and generadigiuires no collateral from its customers. Durl®98, the Company derived approximately
$560,000 of its revenues from Lippincott, Williagusd Wilkins, formerly Waverly, Inc. and approximigt&260,000 of its revenues from
Mosby, Inc. During 1999, the Company derived appnately $380,000 of its revenues from ActivHealtiternational, Inc. and
approximately $240,000 of its revenues from LippitcWilliams and Wilkins, formerly Waverly, Inc.uing 2000, no customer represented
more than 10% of total revenue. The Company detiggsithan 5% of its net revenues from HCA in 200@: total amounts receivable from
Lippincott, Williams and Wilkins, formerly Waverlync. and ActivHealth International, Inc. at DeceanB1, 1999 were approximately
$118,000. The total amounts receivable from HCRetember 31, 2000 were approximately $680,000.

STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

The Company grants stock options for a fixed nundbehares to employees and other parties withxarcise price not less than the fair
value of the shares at the grant date. The Comaerunts for stock option grants in accordance A@bounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 "Accounting for Stock Issued to EmployeesPB 25) and related interpretations. Under APBI®gause the exercise price of
Company's employee stock options is not less thamarket price of the underlying stock on the ddigrant, no compensation expense is
recorded. To the extent that options are issuedaimbers of our advisory boards or non-employeesydlue of such options is measured in
accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123,céumnting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS 123")

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were usetid¥ompany in estimating its fair value disclosuie financial instrument:



Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash: Tigrigiamounts approximate the fair value becaugbhethort-term maturity or short-term
nature of such instruments.

Accounts receivable, accounts receivable-unbilletgyest receivable, accounts payable, accrueditied and deferred revenue: The carrying
amounts approximate the fair value because oftibg-¢erm nature of such instruments.

Investments: The carrying amounts approximatediresfilue based on quoted prices.
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RECLASSIFICATIONS
Certain prior year balances have been reclasgifiednform to current year presentation.
NEWLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

During 1998, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBq&~ASB") issued Statement of Financial Accougt®tandard ("SFAS") No. 133,
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgiigtivities," as amended during 2000 by SFAS No.,13&counting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities," whirequires companies to recognize all derivatagesither assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet and measure such instruments aafag. The Company is required to adopt the promsiof SFAS No. 133 beginning Jant
1, 2001. The Company had no derivative instrumeduatsg 1999 and 2000. Adoption of the statemenitwat currently have any impact on
the consolidated financial statements or relatedld$ures.

2. ACQUISITIONS

SilverPlatter Education, Inc. On July 23, 1999, @l@npany acquired substantially all of the assk&ileerPlatter Education, Inc.
("SilverPlatter"), a Boston-based company that jgles CD-ROM and Internet-based continuing medidaication programs to physicians,
for $0.8 million in cash and 49,202 shares of teenfany's common stock, and the assumption of oditdiilities. The results of operations
are included in the Company's financial statem@&ota July 23, 1999. The acquisition was accountedé a purchase. Intangible assets
acquired consisted of goodwill, customer lists and-competition agreements of $1.0 million, $0.2iom, and $0.1 million, respectively,
and are being amortized on a straight-line basés three, two and two years, respectively.

KnowledgeReview, LLC. On January 3, 2000, the Camycquired substantially all of the assets of KienlgeReview, LLC (d/b/a
"CMECourses.com") for $0.3 million in cash and ¥83hares of the Company's common stock. All oftieres will be held in an escrow
account for a one-year period, subject to claimsrfdemnification pursuant to the asset purchaseesgent. KnowledgeReview owned and
operated an Internet Web page that provided alsesgine (CMEsearch.com) that helped physiciaretéocontinuing medical education by
specialty and facilitated online registration fack courses. The acquisition was accounted forpaschase. Intangible assets acquired
consisted of goodwill, customer lists and non-cotitipa agreements of $0.4 million, $40,000 and $20, respectively, and are being
amortized on a straight-line basis over three yaais years and six months, respectively.

Quick Study, Inc. On January 11, 2000, the Compamired substantially all of the assets and li@dsl of Quick Study, Inc. ("Quick

Study") for $0.1 million in cash and 61,397 shayethe Company's common stock. In addition, the gany issued 6,669 additional share
common stock based on achievement of revenue gobtequent to the acquisition. A portion of theetand the contingently issued shares
will be held in an escrow account for a one-yeaiggk subject to claims for indemnification purstismthe agreement and plan of merger. In
connection with the acquisition, the Company assufitel million of long-term debt. Quick Study pdhled CD-ROM and network-based
products for the healthcare industry. The acqoisitvas accounted for as a purchase. Intangiblésaasguired consisted of goodwill,
customer lists, and non-competition agreementOdf Million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million, respaaly, and are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over three, three and two yeaspectively.

m3 the Healthcare Learning Company. On Januarg @3), the Company acquired substantially all ofabsets and liabilities of Multimedia
Marketing, Inc. d/b/a m3 the Healthcare Learningnpany ("'m3") for $0.6 million in cash and 818,03iaes of the Company's common
stock. m3 provided interactive, multimedia eduaatmd training solutions to hospitals and otheitheare organizations. A portion of the
shares will be held in an escrow account for ayea-period, subject to claims for indemnificatfmrsuant to the agreement and plan of
merger. In connection with the acquisition, the @amy assumed $1.2 million of long-term debt. Theguéition was accounted for as a
purchase. Intangible assets acquired consistedazfvgll and customer lists of $8.4 million and $indlion, respectively, and are being
amortized on a straight-line basis over three years

EMINet, Inc. On January 28, 2000, the Company aegusubstantially all of the assets of Emergencyibiee Internetwork, Inc. d/b/a
EMInet ("EMInet") for $0.6 million in cash and 28®2 shares of the Company's common stock. A podidhe shares will be held in an
escrow account for a ongar period, subject to claims for indemnificatfmursuant to the asset purchase agreement. In@ddite Compan
issued 2,170 additional shares of common stockdoasechievement of revenue goals subsequent tactpgsition. EMInet sold approved
online medical education content to emergency nagiervices personnel. The acquisition was accduoteas a purchase. Intangible assets
acquired consisted of goodwill and customer li$t$28 million and $0.5 million, respectively, aatk being amortized on a straidime basi:
over three years. The allocation of purchase psiggeliminary and may be subject to change asualtref changes in estimates related to the
acquired business.

Education Design Inc. On July 1, 2000, the Compasguired substantially all of the assets of Edocabesign, Inc. (EDI) for $3.0 million
cash and 184,421 shares of the Company's commok Jtoree-quarters of the shares will be held irserow account for a one year period,
subject to any claims for indemnification pursugmthe asset purchase agreement. In addition, giopately $300,000 of cash and 31,711
shares of the Company's common stock were provaéte employees of EDI, subject to certain retdestock award agreements. EDI
provided services for live educational events gratsupported by the medical device industry. Tegisition was accounted for as a
purchase. Intangible assets acquired consistedanfvgll, content, customer lists, and a -competition agreement of $1.9 million, $:



million, $0.3 million, and $0.1 million, respectiyeand are being amortized on a straight-line $aser five years, five years, three years and
one year, respectively. The allocation of purchasgee is preliminary and may be subject to chargja eesult of changes in estimates related
to the acquired business.

SynQuest Technologies, Inc. On September 18, 2060Company acquired substantially all of the asseSynQuest Technologies, Inc.
(SynQuest) for 787,087 shares of the Company's aomstock and assumption of certain debt and othbitities, $2.3 million of which wer
repaid in connection with the purchase transact#gproximately two-thirds of the shares will be ¢hé& an escrow account subject to any
claims or are subject to certain
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stock vesting agreements. SynQuest provided otraieing and education to hospitals and healthogganizations. The acquisition was
accounted for as a purchase. Intangible assetsradquonsisted of goodwill, content, and custoriss lof $2.1 million, $2.0 million, $0.5
million, respectively, and are being amortized airaight-line basis over five years, three yeansl three years, respectively. The allocation
of purchase price is preliminary and may be sulifechange as a result of changes in estimateeddia the acquired business.

The following unaudited results of operations giffect to the operations of the acquisitions disedsabove as if the acquisitions had
occurred as of the first day of the fiscal year ieaiately preceding the year of acquisition. Thefprma results of operations do not purport
to represent what the Company's results of operatimuld have been had such transactions in factroed at the beginning of the period
presented or to project the Company's results efatfpns in any future period.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

199 8 1999 2000
Revenue $ 4,05 9,529 $ 12,818,000 $ 13,497,000
Net loss $ (2,15 6,838) $(13,956,000)  $(23,451,000)
Net loss per share:
Basic $ (0.65) $ (236) $ (1.19)
Diluted $ (0.65) $ (236) $ (1.19)

In accordance with SFAS 128, escrowed shares andrares subject to restrictions or vesting arduebedd from the weighted average shares
outstanding for purposes of calculating net logsspare since such shares are anti-dilutive.

The intangible assets related to the acquisitionsnsarized above consist of the following:

DECEMBER 31,

1999 2000

Intangible assets:

Goodwill $1,047,673 $17,309,38 4
Content -- 3,500,00 0
Customer lists 200,000 2,590,00 0
Noncompetition agreements 100,000 320,00 0
Favorable lease rights -- 152,14 2
Total intangible assets 1,347,673 23,871,52 6
Accumulated amortization (213,000) (5,847,00 0)
Net intangible assets $1,134,673 $18,024,52 6

3. NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT - RELATED PARHS
Notes payable and lo-term debt consists of the following:

DECEMBER 31,

1999 2000
Notes payable - related parties $ 1,293,000 $ -
Long-term debt - related party $ 12,892 $
Less current portion (12,892)
$ - $

The Company had notes payable to the Chief Exez@i¥icer ("CEQ") and principal stockholder totaji$1,293,000 at December 31, 1999.
On April 21, 1999, $1,250,000 of the notes payaisee converted into common stock and series B atible preferred stock. The remaini
$1,525,000 was converted into a promissory not@i{lAote") along with $18,000 of additional indelihess loaned to the Company by the
CEO during 1999. On August 23, 1999, the CEO cdedeain additional $250,000 of notes payable intesd® convertible preferred stock.
The remaining $1,293,000 was converted into a n@missory note ("August note"), which had identieains as the April note. The August
note was unsecured and accrued interest at a lear&tk equal to the lesser of the margin ratetefést at a designated brokerage account or
10.5% and interest was payable monthly. The Augas totaling $1,293,000 was converted into seBiesnvertible preferred stock and tF
into common stock in connection with the Compaysil 2000 initial public offering ("IPO")



The Company had an unsecured long-term promissaigypayable to the CEO, totaling $12,892 at Decer@be1999. The note required
monthly installments of principal and interest @&24 through May 23, 2000. The note accrued iate€12%. During 1999, the Company
had a partially secured demand note payable toeapresident and stockholder of the Company taa@®0,000, which accrued interest at
12% and was converted into series B convertibléepied stock on August 23, 1999.

The Company's weighted average debt outstandintpéoyear ended December 31, 1999 and the portitheyear ended December 31,
2000 during which the Company had debt outstandiag $2,000,261 and $1,751,059, respectively. Tieetafe interest rate on such debt
was 12.5%, 10.1% and 8.8 % for the yeanded December 31, 1998, 1999 and the portioneoje¢ar ended December 31, 2000 during w

the Company had debt outstanding, respectively.
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4. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

On April 14, 2000, the Company completed its IPG 000,000 shares of its common stock for net prds@f $39.8 million. On April 14,
2000, the Company completed a private placemebfldfl,111 shares of its common stock to WebMD &immoceeds of $10.0 million. In
addition, the underwriters exercised their righptmchase 275,000 additional shares of common stoklay 2000, which resulted in
additional gross proceeds of $2.4 million. Uponstanmation of the IPO, all series A, B and C conbketpreferred stock converted by its
terms into 7,131,153 shares of our common stockdtition, the $1,293,000 promissory note payabRdbert A. Frist, Jr., the Company's
chief executive officer and chairman, also conwkitgo 553,711 shares of common stock. Also in egtion with the IPO, the Company
repurchased 6,074 shares of common stock.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue shares of peefestock in one or more series, having the redatating powers, designations,
preferences, rights and qualifications, limitati@ngestrictions, and other terms as the Boardicéddors may fix in providing for the issuan
of such series, without any vote or action of thareholders. During 2000, all shares of prefertedkswere converted into common stock in
connection with the IPO. No additional shares ef@mred stock were issued in 2000.

The Company had authorized the issuance of 76 Jd@@s of preferred stock designated as series Xectible preferred stock, 1,436,961
shares designated as series B convertible prefetoedd and 650,000 shares designated as seriesv@rtible preferred stock. On April 21,
1999, the Company amended its charter increasamguthorized shares of preferred stock to 5 milliduaring 2000, the Company increased
the authorized shares of preferred stock to 1danill

Each holder of preferred stock is entitled to roti€ any shareholders' meeting and shall vote thightholders of common stock, except for
those matters required by law to be voted uponraggig among the holders of common stock and predestock. In all cases where the
holders of preferred stock and holders of commooksare to vote together, the holder of each sbbpeeferred stock is entitled to the
number of votes equal to the number of shares miwon stock into which each share of preferred stoclonvertible. Except as otherwise
required by law, the holders of the preferred stoake voting rights and powers equal to the votights and powers of the common stock.

Each share of series A and B convertible prefestedk was converted into the Company's common stotthe conversion rate of 4.28238
shares of common stock per share of series A atwhBertible preferred stock. Each share of seriesr@@ertible preferred stock was
converted into the Company's common stock at theersion rate of 2.46013 shares of common stockipare of series C convertible
preferred stock.

In January and February 1999 the Company issu€@®8Shares of series A convertible preferred sfock350,000. In April and May 1999
the Company received commitments to purchase 503Ghares of series B convertible preferred std@i0 per share. On April 21, 1999
and May 10, 1999, the Company issued 527,750 sbétbe series B convertible preferred stock iniagte placement to a group of
institutional and individual investors in excharfge$4,877,500 in cash, the conversion of $25080fbtes payable to the Company's CEO
and the contribution of $150,000 in professionavises. The Company issued 502,750 shares of #mesvertible preferred stock at $10
per share in August 1999 in exchange for $4,717i5@ash and the conversion of $250,000 of notgalga to the Company's CEO and the
conversion of $60,000 of notes payables to a viesigent and stockholder. Also, each holder ofsefi and series B convertible preferred
stock had an option to purchase up to an additid®@ of the number of shares purchased in Aprily lbliad August 1999, at $10 per share.
Each investor could exercise their option any tprier to April 21, 2000 or within 30 days after gbsequent equity financing of at least $5
million. This financing occurred on September 1899 and therefore these options expired on Octbbet999.

Through December 31, 1999, investors exercisedaptnd purchased 198,300 shares of series B dimeqreferred stock for cash at $10
per share. In August and September 1999, the Coyripaned 627,406 shares of the series C convepiblerred stock to a group of
institutional and individual investors at $10 pkare. At all times, the Company has reserved oits @uthorized but unissued shares of
common stock, a number of its authorized shareswimon stock sufficient to effect the conversiam ilommon stock of the series A, B and
C convertible preferred shares from time to timeD&cember 31, 1998 and 1999, the Company resamnvedtept available 175,577 and
7,684,866 shares, respectively, of common sto@ffext the conversion of the series A, B and C eatilvle preferred stock.

Warrants

During 1999, the Company entered into a distribudgreement with a business partner. In conneutitinthis agreement, the business
partner was provided with a warrant to purchase@Bshares of the Company's common stock at $b6hare. The warrants expire in
June 2009. The issuance of the warrants resultégbinecognition of $748,343 of product developmexqense in 1999. No part of the 1999
warrant has been exercised as of December 31, 2000.

During February 2000, the Company entered intauz-year Online Education Services Provider Agreematit WCA that includec



providing a warrant to purchase 2,182,568 sharéiseo€ompany's common stock at an exercise pri&& 48 per share. The warrant is
exercisable over a four year period. Under the $avfithe agreement, HCA will purchase a minimurX.0 million in services from the
Company over the term of the contract. The Compsaynortizing the fair value of the warrant ($8.#ion) as a reduction of revenues
proportionately over the term of the four-year agnent. The amortization will fluctuate based onrtheenues received from this agreement
and will vary as a percentage of revenues basdkeoastimated revenues over the course of the mgrge During the year ended December
31, 2000, the Company reduced revenues by the &3®bdf expense related to this HCA warrant.
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5. INVESTMENTS

At December 31, 2000, the fair value of the Compaimyestments, which were all available-for-salejuded the following:

AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZ ED FAIR
COST LOSSES GAINS VALUE
Corporate debt securities $ 10,667,165 $ - $ 68,6 02 $10,735,767
Foreign corporate debt securities 8,537,985 - 43,0 43 8,581,028
Secured corporate debt securities 1,005,498 - 4.8 12 1,010,310
Equity securities 99,920 (85,901) - 14,019
$ 20,310,568 $(85,901) $116,4 57  $20,341,124

The maturities of the above debt securities at bez 31, 2000 are shown below:

Mature within one year $ 7,451,4 50
Mature after one year but before two years 12,875,6 55
Total debt securities $20,327,1 05

6. INCOME TAXES

As described in Note 1, the Company terminate8utischapter S election on October 1, 1998 and besabject to federal income taxes. As
a result of the termination of the Subchapter Stilr, the Company was required to provide defefeg@ral income taxes under SFAS 109,
"Accounting for Income Taxes." The 1998 provision ihcome taxes includes the effect of recordimgideferred tax asset and
corresponding valuation allowance of $57,287 assalt of the termination of the Subchapter S edecti

Income tax benefit differs from the amounts comguig applying the federal statutory rate of 34%ht loss before income taxes as follows:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1998 1999 2000
Tax benefit at the statutory rate $ (540,430) $(1,515,177) $ (6,897,002)
State income tax benefit, net of federal benefit (63,335) (177,741) (667,145)
Nondeductible goodwill - - 1,188,473
Other 2,086 4,382 (69,774)
Tax benefit of losses attributable to shareholders due to
S corporation status prior to October 1, 1998 336,301 - -
Deferred taxes recorded upon termination of S corpo ration status 57,287 - -
Increase in valuation allowance 208,091 1,688,536 6,445,448
$ - $ - $ -

Pro forma income taxes for 1998 as if the Compady/treen a C Corporation for all of that year, hastebeen reflected in the financial
statements because a 100% valuation allowance vhawiel been provided and accordingly there woulchage been a tax benefit.

Deferred federal and state income taxes reflechétie¢ax effects of temporary differences betwéencarrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes an@ thmounts used for income tax purposes. Significamponents of the Company's deferred
tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

DECEMBER 3 1,

1999 2000
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 13914 $ 75,240
Differences related to business combinations 66,726 718,930
Accrued liabilities 18,841 41,048
Deferred revenue 303,351 --
Difference related to warrants 284,370 661,214
Research and development credits - 57,448

Other - 3,458
Net operating loss carryforwards 1,418,589 7,044,093



Total deferred tax assets 2,105,791 8,601,431

Less: Valuation allowance (2,069,017) (8,514,465)

36,774 86,966
Deferred tax liability - depreciation (36,774) (86,966)
Net deferred tax asset $ - $ -
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As of December 31, the Company had federal and stttoperating loss carryforwards of $3,326,625%#188,395, respectively in 1999
and $18,099,076 and $22,260,182 respectively ifd 200ese losses will expire in years 2012 throug®02 A portion of these losses may be
subject to limitation in future years.

The Company has established a valuation allowarrcgdferred tax assets at December 31, 1999 arl A@®to the uncertainty of realizing
these assets in the future. The valuation allowémeased $208,091 during 1998, $1,688,536 durggp and $ 6,445,448 in 2000. No
federal or state income tax payments were madagltine years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000

7. STOCK OPTION PLAN

The Company's 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan @138n") and 2000 Stock Incentive Plan ("2000 Bl&hhe 1994 Plan and the 2000
Plan are collectively referred to as "the Plan'thatzes the grant of options to employees, officard directors. In February 2000, the
Company adopted the 2000 Plan. The terms of th@ PQfh are substantially similar to the 1994 P@ptions granted under the Plan have
terms of no more than ten years with certain retgns. The Plan allows the Board of Directors étetimine the vesting period of each grant.
The vesting period of the options granted rangas fimmediate vesting to four years. In connectidgth the 2000 Plan, 5,000,000 shares
have been reserved for issuance, bringing the sbtales reserved for issuance through option@0I00 shares.

The Company accounts for its stock incentive plaresccordance with APB 25. If the alternative meklod accounting for stock incentive
plans prescribed by SFAS 123 had been followedCthmpany's net loss and net loss per share woutel een:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1998 1999 """""2-566""
Net loss as reported $ (1,589,500) $ (4,456,404) $(20285301)
Pro forma compensation expense 80,849 289,426 1,524,880
Pro forma net loss $ (1,670,349) $ (4,745,830) $(21810181)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share $ (051 $ (1.26) ;:::(;:33:::

The resulting pro forma disclosures may not beasgmtative of that to be expected in future yeetie.weighted average fair value of options
granted was estimated using the minimum value ogiiecing model in 1998, 1999 and 2000 prior to @m@mpany's IPO and the Black-
Scholes method subsequent to the Company's IPCassuenptions used for these estimates include:

1998 1999 2000
ASSUMPTIONS (WEIGHTED AVERAGE)
Risk-free interest rate 5.70% 6.00% 6.00%
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Expected life (in years) 5 5 5
Volatility - - 60%

The estimated weighted average fair values of aptgranted during 1998, 1999 and 2000 using theeapacing models were $0.58; $1.11;
and $2.09, respectively.

A progression of activity and various other infotioa relative to stock options is presented intdigde below.

1998 1999 2000
WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED- WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
COMMON EXERCISE COMMON EXERCISE C OMMON EXERCISE
SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE S HARES PRICE
Outstanding - beginning of period 1,170,6 39 $0.57 1,650,784 $1.07 2, 470,229 $2.84
Granted 496,3 32 2.30 1,383,892 4.29 2, 097,316 6.21
Exercised - - (427,085) 0.54 ( 801,997) 0.75
Forfeited (16,1 87) 2.30 (137,362) 3.26 ( 639,809) 7.30
Outstanding - end of period 1,650,7 84 1.07 2,470,229 2.84 3, 125,739 4.73
Exercisable at end of period 1,196,5 39 0.61 892,477 1.08 665,261 4,51

In July and August 1999, the CEO exercised optgrasted in 1995 and purchased 416,250 shares @fdhmpany's common stock at an
exercise price of $0.54 per share. In December 119@%hen president exercised options grante@®4 land purchased 3,170 shares o



Company's common stock at an exercise price of0B0p@r share. During 1998, the Company modifiedehms of an option grant to an
employee who left the employment of the Compangxtending the exercise date of the options. Atithe of the modification, the
Company recognized compensation expense totaliag,$32 for the difference between the fair marleti® and the exercise price of the
options. During August 2000, the CEO exercisedangtigranted in 1995 and purchased 314,500 shatke @ompany's common stock at an
average exercise price of $0.57 per share. Durimguat 2000, a vice president also exercised optlmtsvere granted in 1995 and purche
105,243 shares at an average exercise price a8 $eisshare.

During 1999, the Company issued 51,800 stock optionits medical and nursing advisory boards atase prices ranging from $2.34 to

$6.49 that immediately vested. The Company recegh#l 1,760 of expense in connection with thesetgr&uring 2000, the Company
issued 27,254 stock
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options to its professional consulting boards &freise prices ranging from $2.125 to $ 11.89 pareshnd recognized $29,900 of expense in
connection with these grants. During 2000, the Camygalso granted options to individuals for sersiaad recognized $16,000 of expense in
connection with these grants.

Shares of common stock available for future grahtsptions totaled 1,102,685 and 3,868,004 at Déesr@1, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
Exercise prices per share and various other infiomdor options outstanding at December 31, 20@0sagregated into ranges as follows:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTION S EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
WEIGHTED AVERAGE AVERAGE
NUMBER AVERAGE EXERCISE = REMAINING NUMBER EXERCISE PRICE
EXERCISE PRICE PER SHARE OF SHARES PRICE PER SHARE CONTRACTUAL LIFE OF SHARES PER SHARE
$0.61 18,500 $0.61 4.2 18,500 $ 0.61
$2.125 838,963 2.125 7.8 7,846 2.125
$2.34 327,383 2.34 4.6 170,675 2.34
$4.06 938,413 4.06 6.7 312,303 4.06
$5.42 152,500 5.42 7.5 - -
$6.49 271,025 6.49 7.0 52,262 6.49
$8.65 156,540 8.65 7.1 23,125 8.65
$9.00 65,750 9.00 9.1 65,750 9.00
$10.00 186,850 10.00 7.2 - --
$11.89 169,815 11.89 7.2 14,800 11.89
3,125,739 4.73 7.0 665,261 4.51

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan

The Company has a defined-contribution employeetitgnian ("401-K Plan") incorporating provisiong ®ection 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Employees of the Company must htaiaed the age of 21 and have completed thirty dagsrvice to be eligible to
participate in the 401-K Plan. Under the provisiohshe 401-K Plan, a plan member may make cortidghs, on a tax-deferred basis, not to
exceed 15% of compensation subject to IRS limitestidhe Company does not provide matching contdhat

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

During 2000, the Company adopted an Employee Seockhase Plan ("Purchase Plan"), which incorpothggrovisions of Section 423 of
the Internal Revenue Code. Under the Purchase PJ@d0,000 shares of common stock have been reséawpurchase by employees. The
Purchase Plan provides for annual offer periodsvefve months to eligible employees. Under the Rase Plan, eligible employees can
purchase through payroll deductions, the lessepdb 15% of their eligible base compensation 60@,shares of common stock, at a price
equivalent to 85% of the lesser of the beginningrat of year price.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Lease Commitments

The Company leases office facilities in Nashvillél, Dallas, TX, Denver, CO, Houston, TX, RaleighC ldnd Boston, MA under agreements
that expire before or during June 2005. The NakhVilN lease provides for two five-year renewaliops. Some lease agreements contain
provisions for escalating rent payments over tliteairterms of the lease. The Company accountsgifese leases by recognizing the straight-
line rent expense and adjusting the deferred rqrrese liability for the difference between thaigfht-line rent expense and the amount of
rent paid. The Company also leases certain officgpenent under both operating and capital leasetl Tent expense under all operating
leases was $51,756, $210,234 and $795,342 foredues yended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, teghecThe Company also leases
certain computer and office equipment and offiaaithings from various third parties accountedd®icapital leases. Future rental payment
commitments at December 31, 2000 under capitahandcancelable operating leases, with initial teafngne year or more, are as follows:

CAPITAL (0] PERATING
LEASES LEASES
2001 $ 333,288 $ 1,009,563
2002 140,816 769,620
2003 62,818 596,684
2004 36,877 458,120
2005 1,212 255,828
-- 100,000

2006 (thereafter)



Total minimum lease payments $ 575,011 $ 3,189,815

Less amounts representing interest (70,108)
Present value of net minimum lease payments (includ ing $288,831
classified as current) $ 504,903

The carrying value of assets under capital leagegh are included with owned assets in the accaryipg balance sheets was $275,596 and
$395,850 at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectikelortization of the assets under the capitaddsas included in depreciation expense.
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Legal Issues

On November 17, 2000, a complaint was filed in@ireuit Court of Tennessee for the Thirtieth Juali®istrict at Memphis against the
Company, SynQuest and two individual shareholde&yoQuest. The complaint asserts that HealthStrngalated the terms of a licensing
agreement entered into between HealthStream arulatmiff and that HealthStream allegedly failedpay royalties due to the plaintiff
pursuant to the terms of that agreement. The [ffadtiso alleges that HealthStream induced SynQteebteach a marketing agreement
entered into between SynQuest and the plaintitierbtively, the plaintiff alleges that HealthStreavhich purchased certain assets of
SynQuest, is liable for SynQuest's alleged bredtheomarketing agreement pursuant to the legarthef successor liability. The aggregate
damages alleged total approximately $9.0 milliore Meélieve the allegations in the complaint are stittmerit, intend to defend the litigation
vigorously and do not believe this litigation whilhve a material adverse effect on our financiatld@n or results of operations.

The Company is subject to various other legal prdo®s and claims that arise in the ordinary coafses business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate liability with respectitose proceedings and claims will not materialfgetfthe financial position, operations or
liquidity of the Company.

10. LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted net loss per share:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1998 1999 2000
Numerator:
Net loss $(1,589,500) $(4,456,404) $(20,285,301)
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares outstanding 3,256,307 3,756,556 15,785,946
Net loss per share, basic and diluted $ (0.49) $ (1.19) $  (1.29)

For the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 art] #@®calculation of weighted average and equitalbares excluded options, warrants,
restricted stock and convertible preferred stoatabse such items were anti-dilutive. The equivatemimon shares related to such options,
warrants, restricted stock and preferred stock \Wg826,362 in 1998, 9,846,414 in 1999 and 6,522i0&%00.

11. STRATEGIC ALLIANCES

The Company periodically enters into strategicalties with distribution partners, content partiaei development partners. Typically, these
arrangements provide for payments to these parbasesd on a percentage of revenues or based o dfocwurseware developed. In
connection with such arrangements, the Companghi@sed into agreements with three entities thatigde for up front payments of
approximately $302,000 in 2001, all of which aremdundable. Additional payments may be requireshugelivery of courses or occurrence
of certain events. In addition, the Company hasradgments of approximately $100,000 related to contlevelopment services. Payment of
such amounts is contingent upon delivery of convgrthe provider.

The Company entered into a distribution agreeméifit avbusiness partner during 1999 that providedotlsiness partner with a warrant to
purchase 245,032 shares of the Company's commok at&4.06 per share. The warrant expires in 2008. The issuance of the warrant
resulted in recognition of $748,343 of product depment expense in 1999. No part of the 1999 wahas been exercised as of December
31, 2000.

The Company also entered into a development agmgamédanuary 2000 with a private company underctvithe Company paid $95,000 ¢
paid the entity another $400,000 during 2000 assesuwere developed. In connection with this agesgnthe Company received a warrat
purchase 223,834 shares of the entity's commoR stoen exercise price of $4.47 per share.

In February 2000, the Company entered into a fiearyagreement with WebMD. The agreement providatttie Company would be the
exclusive provider of education, continuing edumatind training services for all healthcare orgations, healthcare professionals and
healthcare workers on all Web sites owned or opdray WebMD. The Company committed to pay WebMuargnteed minimum royalty
of $6.0 million per year. The agreement also predithat the Company would receive 100% of any reesrirom the sale of its products and
services until all payments to WebMD were recoveeedl after that revenues would be shared 75%et@€tmpany and WebMD would
receive 25% of any revenues. WebMD also committgolirchase $10.0 million of the Company's commoaksin a private sale that closed
concurrent with the Company's IPO. WebMD also adjtegrovide certain marketing and co-branding ises/to the Company under this
agreement. During 2000, the Company expensed add\ebMD $1.5 million. At December 31, 2000, theampanying balance sheet
includes accrued and unpaid royalties relateditoafreement of $1.5 million. As noted below, #igeement was terminated during Jant



2001.
12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 5, 2001, the Company terminated its pgoeeement with WebMD and set forth a new busiaessigement. Under the new, non-
exclusive three-year agreement, the Company will peeferred provider of continuing medical edumaticontinuing education and board
preparation courses for WebMD's professional pottater this new arrangement, financial considerawill be based entirely on revenues
generated from the sale of HealthStream's serticééebMD's professional portal customers.

This arrangement also terminated the lock-up ageaénelated to the 1.1 million shares of Health&trecommon stock that WebMD
purchased in a private offering just prior to thengpany's IPO. In connection with this terminatibiealthStream gave WebMD the right to
sell the shares back to HealthStream at any timoaiglh March 30, 2001. On February 8, 2001, WebMé&reized its right to sell the 1.1
million shares of HealthStream common stock badgkéoCompany at $1.7833 per share. The Companygué&ad the shares on February 16,
2001.
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During the quarter ending March 31, 2001, Heal®tr will recognize a gain on termination of thepkVebMD agreement. This gain
represents the reversal of the scheduled $1.5omifiked payment, which was accrued during the igun@nded September 30, 2000, and will
be reduced by the fair value of the right grantetMebMD to cause HealthStream to purchase the dlibmshares of HealthStream comm
stock held by WebMD.

On January 26, 2001, the Company acquired subsligrdil of the assets of de'MEDICI Systems, a bess unit of Lippincott, Williams &
Wilkins for approximately $360,000 and 181,250 slaof HealthStream common stock. The acquisitiats ader 200 hospital customers.
The acquisition will be accounted for as a purchase

During February 2001, options to purchase 40,0@0eshof common stock at an exercise price of $iefshare were granted.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

PART III.
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

Information as to directors of the Company is ipavated by reference from the information contaimeolur proxy statement for the 2001
Annual Meeting of Stockholders that we will filettvithe Securities and Exchange Commission withihd&ys of the end of the fiscal yea
which this report relates. Pursuant to Generatuieibn G(3), certain information concerning ex@geiofficers of the Company is included
Part | of this Form 10-K, under the caption "ExéoeiOfficers."

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Incorporated by reference from the information egmgd in our proxy statement for the 2001 Annuaétifey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ii days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

Incorporated by reference from the information eamd in our proxy statement for the 2001 AnnuaéMey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ii days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Incorporated by reference from the information eamed in our proxy statement for the 2001 AnnuaéMey of Stockholders that we will fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission witt#ii days of the end of the fiscal year to whick teport relates.
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ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a)(2) Financial Statements

PART IV.

Reference is made to the financial statementsdeciun Item 8 to this Report on Form 10-K.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are notcgiyp or the required information is shown in @ensolidated Financial Statements or the
notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

NUMBER

*4.5

*4.6

*10.1
*10.2
*10.3
*10.4
*10.5

*+10.6
*+10.7
*10.8
*21.1
23.1
24.1

DESCRIPTION
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated J
SilverPlatter Information, Inc. a
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dat
Acquisition 1, Inc., Quick Study,
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated D
and Maksim Repik, and HealthStrea
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dat
Acquisition I, Inc., Multimedia
Asset Purchase Agreement, dated J
and HealthStream, Inc.
Form of Fourth Amended and Restat
Form of Amended and Restated Byla
Form of certificate representing
Article 7 of the Fourth Amended a
Article Il of the Amended and Res
Warrant to purchase common stock
Systems.
Warrant to purchase common stock
Columbia Information Systems.
Common Stock Purchase Agreement b
1994 Employee Stock Option Plan,
2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effect
Form of Indemnification Agreement
Executive Employment Agreement, d
Lease dated March 27, 1995, as am
landlord, and NewOrder Media, Inc
Development and Distribution Agre
Online Services Agreement between
Form of Employee Stock Purchase P
Subsidiaries of HealthStream, Inc
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Ind
Power of Attorney (included on pa

uly 23, 1999, among SilverPlatter Education, Inc.,

nd HealthStream, Inc.

ed January 5, 2000, among HealthStream, Inc., Healt
Inc. and each shareholder of Quick Study, Inc.

ecember 16, 1999, among KnowledgeReview, LLC, Louis
m, Inc.

ed January 25, 2000 among HealthStream, Inc., Healt
Marketing, Inc., and the stockholders of Multimedia
anuary 27, 2000, between Emergency Medicine Interne

ed Charter of HealthStream, Inc.

ws of HealthStream, Inc.

the common stock, no par value per share, of Health
nd Restated Charter -- included in Exhibit 3.1

tated Bylaws -- included in Exhibit 3.2

of HealthStream, Inc., dated June 14, 1999, held by

of HealthStream, Inc., dated February 11, 2000, hel

etween HealthStream, Inc. and Healtheon/WebMD Corpo
effective as of April 15, 1994
ive as of April 10, 2000

ated April 21, 1999, between HealthStream, Inc. and
ended June 6, 1995 and September 22, 1998, between
., as tenant

ement between HealthStream, Inc. and GE Medical Sys
HealthStream, Inc. and Columbia Information System
lan

épendent Auditors
ge 43)

hStream
Bucelli
hStream

Marketing, Inc.
twork, Inc.

Stream, Inc.

GE Medical
d by

ration

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Cummins Station LLC, as

tems
S.

+ Confidential treatment was received, with respedertain portions of this document. Such posiamere omitted and filed separately with

the Securities and Exchange Commission.

* Incorporated by reference to Registrant's Regfistn Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-88939).

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

Report filed on January 8, 2001 regarding termamatf WebMD agreement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized on this 29th day of March, 2001.

HEALTHSTREAM, INC.

By:/s/ Robert A. Frist, Jr.

Robert A. Frist, Jr.
Chi ef Executive Oficer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW BY ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that eachspa whose signature appears below constitutesgmoints jointly and
severally, Robert H. Laird, Jr. and Arthur E. Newmand each one of them, his or her attorneysdnh-é&ach with the power of substitution,
for him or her in any and all capacities, to sigy and all amendments to this Annual Report on FbBAK and to file the same, with exhibits
thereto and other documents in connection therewith the Securities and Exchange Commission,bhyeratifying and confirming all that
each said attorneys-in-fact, or his substituteubistitutes, may do or cause to be done by virtuedfe

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed &ydhowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dathisated:

SIGNATURE TITLE(S) DATE
/s/ Robert A. Frist, Jr. P resident, Chief Executive Officer and March 29, 2001
C hairman (Principal Executive Officer)

Robert A. Frist, Jr.

s/ Arthur E. Newman S enior Vice-President and Chief Financial March 29, 2001
(0] fficer (Principal Financial Officer)

Arthur E. Newman

/s/ Susan A. Brownie \Y ice President of Finance and Corporate March 29, 2001
C ontroller (Principal Accounting Officer)

Susan A. Brownie

/sl Jeffrey L. McLaren

\Y ice Chairman March 29, 2001
Jeffrey L. McLaren

D irector March 29, 2001
John Dayani
/s/ James Daniell

D irector March 29, 2001
James Daniell
/s/ William Stead

D irector March 29, 2001
William Stead
/sl M. Fazle Husain

D irector March 29, 2001
M. Fazle Husain
/sl Thompson Dent

D irector March 29, 2001
Thompson Dent
/s/ Charles N. Martin

D irector March 29, 2001

Charles N. Martin
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ITEM DESCRIPTION

EXHIBITS
NUMBER DESCRIPTION
*2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated J
SilverPlatter Information, Inc. a
*2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dat
Acquisition 1, Inc., Quick Study,
*2.3 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated D
and Maksim Repik, and HealthStrea
*2.4 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dat
Acquisition I, Inc., Multimedia
*2.5 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated J
and HealthStream, Inc.
*3.1 Form of Fourth Amended and Restat
*3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Byla
*4.1 Form of certificate representing
4.2 Article 7 of the Fourth Amended a
4.3 Article Il of the Amended and Res
*4.4 Warrant to purchase common stock
Systems.
*4.5 Warrant to purchase common stock
Columbia Information Systems.
*4.6 Common Stock Purchase Agreement b
*10.1 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan,
*10.2 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, effect
*10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement
*10.4 Executive Employment Agreement, d
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3744@&ppeng to the (1) HealthStream, Inc.
1994 Employee Stock Option Plan, (2) HealthStrdam,2000 Stock Incentive Plan, and (3) HealthSirelmc. Employee Stock Purchase
Plan, of our report dated February 10, 2001 exteptiote 12, as to which the date is February 2812 with respect to the consolidated
financial statements of HealthStream, Inc. inclugtethe Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ethdleecember 31, 2000.

Nashville, Tennesse
March 28, 2001
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